Board of Trustees Meeting

Wednesday, March 12, 2025
6:00 p.m.

Virtual




Board of Trustees Meeting March 12, 2025

Table of Contents

COVEL PPAGE ... bbb bbb s 1
T'ADLE Of COMEEILS ....cecveereniinieicieteireee ettt ba ettt ettt eae sttt s seacsntaces 2
AGENAA....ci ettt taees 4
Agenda Item 7. A. Approval of Special Meeting Minutes February 12, 2025 ...............ccccoovniiinniccnnnn. 8
Agenda Item 7. B. Approval of Minutes February 12, 2025............cc.cccccoviuiiiiincnicniceeeenceeeneeseeneeeneenes 1
Agenda Item 8. A. Detail SNEEt ..ot 16
Agenda Item 8. A. Lindquist, Von HUSEN & JOYCE ......cc.cccuiiiriiiiiirnciicicricecteceeeee e eeneeeeennes 17
Agenda Item 8. B. Detail SREEt ........cccciiiiiiiiiiiicc e 43
Agenda Item 8. B. Approval of Conflict of Resolution Plan for Jacquie Colton...............ccocvinivnnnnnce. 45
Agenda Item 8. C. Approval of Startup Contracts
Agenda Item 8. C. 1. Detail SHEEt.....cocuuiuciiciiciicccce et e 55
Brilliant Corners, P1.2188-999 Contract AMENdMENT......ceeiririeueiririeieiiiirieieesesieieesesteieses st esseseesessesenens 57
Agenda Item 8. C. 2. Detail SNEEt.......ccuiuiiiiiiiiicicicic e 62
CPP/CRDP Statrtup Projects, Various VENAOLS ....ccueereeereuiineereenieereineieeseeeeseseinesseseessssessessessessssessessessesscsees 63
Agenda Item 8. D. Detail SREEt .......c.cocicuemiiicieiiieiieeee ettt 70
Agenda Item 8. D. Approval of Operations CONLIACK...........cccccuiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 7
Agenda Item 8. E. Approval of the Reviewed NLACRC Whistleblower Policy
Agenda Item 8. E. Detail ShEet ..ot 74
REAINEA COPY.vriviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicii e 75
ClEAN COPY 1ttt bbb bbb bbb bbb s 85
Agenda Item 8. F. Approval of the Reviewed NLACRC Standards of Conduct Policy
Agenda Item 8. F. Detail Sheet ..o 95
REAINEA COPY.ruviiniiiniiiriiiiiiiiiiciieiicict e bbbt 96
CLEAN COPY ettt et sttt 101
Agenda Item 8. H. Detail SREet ..o 106
Agenda Item 8. H. Approval to Move Strategic Planning Committee to Ad Hoc Committee............ 107
Agenda Item 8. I. Detail SHEEt ........ccocoiiiiiiiiiicc s 109
Agenda Item 8. I. Approval of Revised Bylaws to Submit to DDS...........ccccooiiiiiiieeeee 110
Agenda Item 8. J. Detail SREET ........cccooiiiiiiiiiiic e 147
Agenda Item 8. J. Updated Commuttee LiSt..........cccooiuieiiicmiioniniiiiicicnieeee e seeaennees 148
Agenda Item 9. F. Detail ShEet ...t 150
Agenda Item 9. A. Financial Reports October 2024 thru December 2024..............cccoovvvirvivinininninnnn, 151



Agenda Item 10. Executive Director’s RePort.........cccccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinicics s 166

Agenda Item 11. A. SDLVAC LiaiSOn RePOTt.........cccoriierviricrririiiererriieereeieeeneesieensesteesesesseseaesessessaenes 174
Agenda Item 11. B. SDP Implementation RePort ... 176
Agenda Item 13. B. Monthly HR Report for February 2025 .............ccccccooviiiiiniiiiiccccceeenens 182
Agenda Item 15. A. Consumer Services Committee Summary/Chair Report .........ccecoeuvcuneurevveernvcecnnn. 185
Agenda Item 22. Old Business/New Business

Board and Committee Meeting Attendance SHEELS .......ccvveueiueecieeniieeeiriereceecieecieeeseeesese e eseaenns 187

Board and Committee Meetings Time REPOLt ......cviiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicss s 187

Updated ACTONYMS LASTIIZ ...ecvuvureaieincieiiieiiicieireeieeee et sse s saesenas 197
Agenda Item 23. Reference Documents

Board of Trustees Master Calendar. ..ot seaenas 203

Board of Trustees Meeting SChedule ... 215

Board of Trustees COMMIEEE LIST...cuuueuiieuieiiciieiiiecieiecieeee e 216



North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900  Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100. Chatsworth, CA 91311 | www.nlacrc.org

North Los Angeles County Regional Center
Board of Trustees Meeting -

Wednesday, March 12, 2025
6:00 p.m. (Virtual)
Zoom
~AGENDA ~

Call to Order & Welcome (5 in)

Share Impact Story From Individual Served (5 in)

Housekeeping (2 min)
A. Spanish Interpretation Available
B. Public Attendance (please note name in Chat)
C. Reminder — Monthly Submission for Childcare/Attendant Care Billing/All
Meeting Invites to Include BoardSupport@NILACRC.org
D. *Update Zoom Screen Name to include full name, board position, and
geographic location (SFV, AV, or SCV)

Board Member Attendance/Quorum (7 win)
Agenda — [APPROVAL] (7 min)

Public Input & Comments -Reserved for Agenda Items (3 minutes per comment, 3-
person limit) (9 min)

Consent Items (2 win)
A. Approval of Special Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes, February 12, 2025 (7

B. Approval of Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes February 12, 2025 (7 min)

Action Items
A. Lindquist, Von Husen & Joyce Presentation of NLACRC’s FY2023-24
Audited Financial Statements — Lindquist, Von Husen & Joyce (70 min)
B. Approval of the Conflict of Resolution Plan for Jacquie Colton — Betsy
Monahan (3 min)
C. Approval of Purchase of Services Startup Contracts — Vini Montague (5 min)
1. Brilliant Corners, PL.2188-999 — Contract Amendment
2. CPP/CRDP Startup Projects, Various Vendors

Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope 1 alleys since 1974.


http://www.nlacrc.org/
mailto:BoardSupport@NLACRC.org

10.

11.

12.

13.

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900  Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100. Chatsworth, CA 91311 | www.nlacrc.org

D. Approval of Operations Contract — Vini Montague (5 win)
1. ePlus Technology (Palo Alto Networks)
E. Approval of the Reviewed NLACRC Whistleblower Policy — Betsy Monahan
(5 min)
1. Redlined Copy
2. Clean Copy
F. Approval of the Reviewed NLACRC Standards of Conduct Policy — Betsy
Monahan (5 min)
1. Redlined Copy
2. Clean Copy
. Sunset Current Strategic Plan — Angela Pao-Johnson (5 win)
. Approval to Move Strategic Planning Committee to an Ad Hoc Committee —
Anna Hurst (5 min)
I. Discussion and Approval of Revised Bylaws to submit to DDS — Sharmila
Brunjes (5 min)
J. Approval of Committee List Updates and Committee Appointments —
Sharmila Brunjes (2 min)

s e

Committee Business
A. Financial Reports for October 2024 thru December 2024 — Vini Montague (5

Executive Director’s Report (5 win) — Angela Pao-Johnson

Self-Determination Program (SDP) Report # »in) —Silvia Renteria-Haro
A. SDLVAC Liaison Report
B. SDP Implementation Report
C. Next Self Determination Local Advisory Committee Meeting: March 20,
2025, 6:30 p.m.

Association of Regional Center Agencies (7 min) — Lety Garcia
A. No meeting since the February Board Meeting
B. Next meeting: March 20, 2025

Administrative Affairs Committee (2 »in) — Anna Hurst
A. Committee Summary
B. Monthly HR Report for February 2025
C. Next meeting: Thursday, April 17, 2025, 6:00 p.m.

Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope 1 alleys since 1974.


http://www.nlacrc.org/

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900  Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100. Chatsworth, CA 91311 | www.nlacrc.org

Consumer Advisory Committee (7 »in) — Juan Hernandez/Jose Rodriguez
A. Committee Summary

B. Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 2, 2025, 3:00 p.m.

Consumer Services Committee (7 »in) — Jennifer Koster
A. Committee Summary
B. Next Meeting Wednesday, April 16, 2025, 6:00 p.m.

Executive Committee (7 »in) — Juan Hernandez
A. Committee Summary

B. Next Meeting Thursday, April 24, 2025, 6:00 p.m.

Government & Community Relations Committee (2 #in) — Cathy Blin
A. No meeting since the February Board Meeting
B. Next Meeting Wednesday, March 19, 2025, 6:00 p.m.

Nominating Committee (7 win) — Curtis Wang
A. Committee Summary
B. Next Meeting Wednesday, April 2, 2025, 5:30 p.m.

Post-Retirement Medical Trust Committee (7 in)
A. No meeting since the October Board Meeting
B. Next Meeting Thursday, May 22, 2025, 5:30 p.m.

Strategic Planning Committee (7 »in) - Anna Hurst
A. Committee Summary

B. Next Meeting Monday, May 5, 2025, 6:00 p.m.

Vendor Advisory Committee (7 in) — Alex Kopilevich
A. Committee Summary
B. Next Meeting Thursday, March 13, 2025, 9:30 a.m. (Hybrid)

Old Business/New Business (5 win)
A. Board and Committee Meeting Attendance Sheets
B. Board and Committee Meetings Time Report
C. Updated Acronyms Listing
D. Meeting Evaluation Survey Link

Announcements/Information/Public Input (3 minutes per comment) (9 min)
Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope 1 alleys since 1974.


http://www.nlacrc.org/

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900  Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100. Chatsworth, CA 91311 | www.nlacrc.org

A. Reference Documents
1. Board of Trustees Master Calendar
2. Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule
3. Board of Trustees Committee List
B. Next Meeting: Wednesday, April 9, 2025, 6:00 p.m. Hybrid Meeting Antelope
Valley Office

a. Performance Contract will also be reviewed.
24. Adjournment

25. Review of Committee Action Log Items (Item Owner and Due Date)

Please refer to NLACRC’s website for the Calendar of Events, which includes a link for the Family Focus
Resource Center, for information regarding more support groups, training opportunities, dates, times,
and links — Calendar of Events | NLACRC

Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope 1 alleys since 1974.


http://www.nlacrc.org/
https://www.nlacrc.org/about-us/calendar-of-events

North Los Angeles County Regional Center
Board of Trustees

Minutes of Special Board of Trustees Meeting
Wednesday, February 12, 2025
6:00 pm

The Board of Trustees of North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc., a nonprofit corporation, held
a special board meeting at the NLACRC Chatsworth Office and Zoom on February

Trustees Present Trustees Absent Guests Present
Alex Kopilevich — VAC Chair Jennifer Koster Tresa Oliveri, DDS Tech
Leticia Garcia— ARCA Rep Mark Wolfe, DDS Tech
Sharmila Brunjes- ARCA Alt Staff Present Aaron Abramowitz,
George Alvarado —ARCA CAC Rep Angela Pao-Johnson Council to the Board
Juan Hernandez —ARCA CAC Alt Lindsay Granger Xochitl Gonzalez, DDS
Anna Hurst Arezo Abedi Nicholas Mendoza
Nicholas Abrahms John Van de Riet Brian Winfield, DDS
Cathy Blin Chris Whitlock Ernie Cruz, DDS
Laura Monge (Virtual) Victor Vitalis Michie Gates, DDS
Curtis Wang Michael Karpman Lori Walker, SDLAC
Betsy Monahan Chair, NLACRC
Silvia Renteria-Haro Christian Villafuerte,
Evelyn McOmie Spanish Translator
Vini Montague Rebecca Ernewein,
Recording Minutes
Solutions
1. Call to Order & Welcome — Leticia Garcia, ARCA Representative

Lety called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

Board Member Attendance/Quorum — Lindsay Granger, Executive Assistant

Lindsay took attendance of Board Members; a quorum was present.

Agenda / Housekeeping
A. Spanish Interpretation Available

Ana informed attendees that instructions for Spanish Interpretation are in the chat.
B. Public Attendance

Ana asked public attendants to notate their names and agencies in the chat.

Public Input — Agenda Items

Action Item

A. Vote to Elect New Members to the Board of Trustees

1. Applicant —Jason Taketa
2. Applicant — Jeremy Sunderland
3. Applicant —Jacquie Colton

Lety Garcia reviewed the information on the proposed Board Nominees.



NLACRC Board of Trustees Special Meeting Minutes
February 12, 2025

The Board Nominees introduced themselves, and the current ballot was presented and
reviewed. For the election process, Board Support handed out paper ballots to be filled out and
provided a link for those that were unable to attend in person. Each attendee would complete
the ballot, and Board Support would return and collect them. Once Board Support collected all
the paper ballots and received the survey results, the votes were tallied to determine the
outcome.

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/A. Ramirez) To approve the Board Nominees as presented.

B. Vote to Elect New Slate of Officers for the Board of Trustees
1. President —Juan Hernandez

First Vice President — Sharmila Brunjes

Second Vice President — Curtis Wang

Secretary — Sharmila Brunjes

Treasurer — Anna Hurst

vk wnN

M/S/C (G. Alvarado/C. Blin) To approve the Board Nominees as presented and move on to do
the vote.

The Voting for the new slate of Officers for the Board of Trustees followed the same voting
format as the previous New Board Members vote. The Slate of Officers ballot was presented
and reviewed. Board Support passed out the physical ballots for the board members, who were
present in-person, to complete and return to staff. Board member(s) that were not present in-
person were sent a link to a survey to cast their vote for the slate of officers for the board. Once
all the paper ballots were returned and the results from the online survey available, the votes
were tallied for each of the proposed board members for each of the officer positions.

M/S/C (/C. Blin) To approve the ballot for Slate of Officers and move forward to a vote.

The proposed slate of officers to the Board of Trustees was accepted with each of the individuals
receiving a majority number of votes in favor for each position.

Election Results:

The New Board of Trustees Members: Jason Taketa, Jeremy Sunderland, and Jacquie Colton
Board of Trustees Officers: Juan Hernandez, President, Sharmila Brunjes, First V.P. and Board
Secretary, Curtis Wang, Second V.P., Anna Hurst, Board Treasurer

5. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at 6:57 pm.



NLACRC Board of Trustees Special Meeting Minutes
February 12, 2025

Submitted by:
Lindsay Granger
Executive Administrative Assistant

10



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER (NLACRC)

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
HELD AT NLACRC CHATSWORTH OFFICE, 9200 OAKDALE AVENUE STE. 100
CHATSWORTH, CA 91311
FEBRUARY 12, 2025 7:00 P.M.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES:

Juan Hernandez, Sharmila Brunjes, Curtis Wang, Anna Hurst, George Alvarado, Alex
Kopilevich, Leticia Garcia, Cathy Blin, Nicholas Abrahms, Jason Taketa, Jacquie Colton,
Jeremy Sunderland, Laura Monge, Jennifer Koster

ABSENT:

STAFF:

Angela Pao-Johnson - Executive Director, Evelyn McOmie, Vini Montague, Betsy Monahan,
Megan Mitchell, Chris Whitlock, John Van de Riet, Arezo Abedi, Lindsay Granger, Sandra
Rizo, Kim Visokey, Arshalous Garlanian, Donna Rentsch, Roy Ortega, Ana Maria Parthenis-
Rivas, Victor Vitalis, Silvia Renteria-Haro,

GUESTS:

Mark Wolfe — DDS Tech. Advisor, Tresa Oliveri — DDS Tech Advisor, Xochitl Gonzalez — DDS,
Brian Winfield — DDS, Ernie Cruz—DDS, Michie Gates — DDS, Aaron Abramowitz — Council
to the Board, Nicholas Mendoza, Christian Villafuerte, Lori Walker, Victoria Berrey, Rebecca
Ernewein, Richard Dier

CALL TO ORDER
There being a quorum present, and adequate and proper notice of the meeting having been
given, the meeting was called to order at 7:09 p.m.

The Chair shared the mission and vision of the NLACRC and reminded attendees of the Board
of Trustees Civility Code.

Juan Hernandez introduced themselves as the new Board President and stated their focus on
improving the system and ensuring fairness to all NLACRC members. Angela Pao-Johnson
spoke to Juan Hernandez’s speech and reflected on how their new role as President should
help unify the Board going forward.

IMPACT STORY FROM INDIVIDUAL SERVED

Angela Pao-Johnson relayed a testimonial from a family of a school age parent expressing
gratitude to Iman Dimashki, the Service Coordinator for NLACRC, for their help in getting the
family’s son the support they needed. The family noted that this contribution made a significant
impact.

BOARD MEMBER ATTENDANCE/QUORUM
Board members were confirmed in attendance in-person or on Zoom.

AGENDA — APPROVAL

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING, NLACRC, FEBRUARY 12, 2025

11



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

On a motion made by George Alvarado, seconded by Alex Kopilevich, it was resolved
to approve the agenda as presented.

PUBLIC INPUT & COMMENTS—RESERVED FOR AGENDA ITEMS

Richard Dier expressed criticism regarding the Board’s onboarding process and the NLACRC
demographic data compared to the requirements of the current Board. He provided an
overview of his 46 years of association with NLACRC, and requested the Board review their
onboarding policies.

Lori Walker expressed gratitude to the Board and NLACRC staff and requested that committee
meetings not be scheduled at the same time as the Self-Determination Program meetings,
which resulted in members being unable to attend both meetings.

One attendee expressed concerns over a lack of response relating to the NLACRC staff
collaboration for Self-Determination program training. Angela Pao-Johnson clarified that the
training would be provided by Management with oversight by SDLAC after a meeting with Lori
Walker.

CONSENT/ACTION ITEMS

On a motion made by George Alvarado, seconded by Sharmila Brunjes, it was resolved
to approve all consent items listed on the agenda as presented. Motioned carried.

ACTION ITEMS

Approval of Union Contracts Effective February 19, 2019 to December 18, 2022

On a motion made by Cathy Blin, seconded by Alex Kopilevich, it was resolved to
approve the union contracts from February 19, 2019 to December 18, 2022. Motion
carried.

Approval of Union Contracts Effective February 17, 2023 to February 16, 2028

On a motion made by Anna Hurst, seconded by Alex Kopilevich, it was resolved to
approve the union contracts from February 17, 2023 to February 16, 2028. Motion
carried.

Approval of Executive Director Performance Evaluation Timeline

On a motion made by Cathy Blin, seconded by Alex Kopilevich, it was resolved to
approve the executive director performance evaluation timeline edits. Motion carried.

ACTION - Angela Pao-Johnson will confirm if a review of Board policies is scheduled for the
next executive committee meeting.

Review and Approval of Revisions to Service Standards Early Start Eligibility

On a motion made by Sharmila Brunjes, seconded by George Alvarado, it was resolved
to approve the revisions to service standards early start eligibility. Motion carried.

Approval of Change in Authorized Signers

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING, NLACRC, FEBRUARY 12, 2025

12



7.6

1.7

7.8

7.9

On a motion made by George Alvarado, seconded by Cathy Blin, it was resolved to
approve the addition of the new Board President and Treasurer as authorized signers
for the City National bank accounts. Motion carried.

On a motion made by Jennifer Koster, seconded by George Alvarado, it was resolved
to remove the previous Board President’s name on PMT and UAL bank accounts and
replace with Juan Hernandez. Motion carried.

New Board Member Onboarding Process

On a motion made by Sharmila Brunjes, seconded by Alex Kopilevich, it was resolved
to approve the new board member onboarding plan. Motion carried.

On a motion made by Sharmila Brunjes, seconded by Alex Kopilevich, it was resolved
to review new items for local bylaws discussed by the Nominating Committee at a prior
meeting. Motion carried.

ACTION - Evelyn McOmie is to send an e-mail to all Board members regarding an update to
the bylaws based on the new onboarding plan.

Approval of Attendance Exception for Board of Trustees Member

On a motion made by Sharmila Brunjes, seconded by Cathy Blin, it was resolved to
approve George Alvarado’s Board meeting absences due to not being provided a final
warning by the Board secretary. Motion carried.

George Alvarado acknowledged the absences and confirmed he would pay more attention to
Board attendance going forward. It was noted that he resigned from some NLACRC
committees to ensure commitment.

Approval of the Board Training Plan to Submit to DDS

On a motion made by Sharmila Brunjes, seconded by Cathy Blin, it was resolved to
tentatively approve the submission of the Board training plan pending submission
timelines. Motion carried.

On a motion made by Sharmila Brunjes, seconded by Alex Kopilevich, it was resolved
to move July’s training date to September. Motion carried.

Proposed Revision of Bylaws to DDS for Approval

On a motion made by Sharmila Brunjes, seconded by Laura Monge, it was resolved to
postpone the approval of the bylaw revision proposal until additional amendments
made by DDS and the legal team. Motion carried.

The Board discussed the recent proposed revision of bylaws to DDS. Leticia Garcia expressed
concerns about reducing the amount of required NLACRC Board members from 14 to 11,
noting the size of the regional center and how it could affect the entire composition of the
Board.

Concerns were further raised on the amendment being permanent when the situation is only
temporary, and it was noted that the bylaws would require multiple modifications if it were
changed again.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING, NLACRC, FEBRUARY 12, 2025

13



9.

The Board discussed amending the bylaw to indicate that it only applies when the member
count is below the minimum for a specific period of time. Further concerns were raised about
how a time limit could potentially cause the Board to rush to find members as opposed to
finding those who would provide more benefit.

A motion was made by Leticia Garcia to reject the bylaw change and then withdrew their
motion. Anna Hurst also motioned to amend the bylaw to be raised from 11 to 13 members to
allow for a one-person buffer and then rescinded their motion.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Angela Pao-Johnson presented the Executive Director’s Report. She highlighted the
following items:

The special incident report timeline indicating NLACRC’s adherence to transmitting
SIRs to DDS within two business days is an average of 93% across a rolling 12
months.

NLACRC's recent survey of 50 new hires completing their staff orientation training.
Marlene Jones is joining NLACRC as the new Recruiting Manager.

NLACRC is creating another job tier for case management called Associate
Service Coordinators.

NLACRC is in process of hiring Consumer Services Consumer Self-Determination
Lead Training specialists

The Governor’s proposed budget is expected to increase by 20.2% reaching a total
of $19 billion, an increase of $3.2 billion.

The Office of Management and Budget memo was released on January 26, 2025
and has since been rescinded.

DDS has allowed regional centers in areas impacted by the Southern California
wildfires to apply for Health and Safety Waivers, among additional flexibilities.
Rate reforms on transportation, Supported Employment Program, and Department
of Rehabilitation Supported Employment Program rates.

SB 138 implementation updates including intake and vendorization
standardizations, along with respite services.

Master plan workgroup updates including person-centered service systems, timely
and inclusive services, high-quality workforce, consistent and data-driven systems,
and adequate resources for lifelong services.

NLACRC updates including 805 positions filled for recruitment with 958 positions
authorized, multiple outreach programs attended by NLACRC members, and in-
depth consumer statistic data.

A list of upcoming disability organization events and activities.

ITEMS 10-21 REPORTS RECEIVED

The Board received the following committee reports for information:

Self-Determination Program.

Association of Regional Center Agencies.
Administrative Affairs Committee.

Consumer Advisory Committee.

Consumer Services Committee.

Executive Committee.

Government and Community Relations Committee.
Nominating Committee.

Post-Retirement Medical Trust Committee.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING, NLACRC, FEBRUARY 12, 2025

14



10.

11.

12.

e Recruiting Committee
e Strategic Planning Committee.
e Vendor Advisory Committee.

As reports were presented, the following speakers offered observations and comments:

¢ |t was confirmed that the Board president, one staff, two vendors and a legislative
specialist would be attending the Association of Regional Center Agencies on
March 20, 2025

e Juan Hernandez noted a recent emergency alert in Spanish was unintelligible.
Angela Pao-Johnson confirmed that the settings had been changed to prevent this
issue going forward.

e Evelyn McOmie confirmed a new e-mail announcement would be sent to all Board
members regarding changing the Board recognition award back to the Jynny
Retzinger Community Service award and would be merged into a new campaign.

¢ Evelyn McOmie confirmed a list of town hall attendees for the meeting on February
25, 2025 would be sent to the Board, with three members currently confirmed.

ANNOUNCEMENTS/INFORMATION/PUBLIC INPUT

Lilian A. Martin, the former Board secretary reminded all in attendance that their
purpose is to support consumers and their families and provided contact information
for anyone to direct any questions regarding potential investigations.

Aaron Abramowitz thanked all staff service coordinators for their hard work.

NEXT MEETING

The date of the next Board of Trustees meeting is to be determined.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting closed at 9:00 p.m.
DISCLAIMER
The above document should be used as a summary of the motions passed and issues

discussed at the meeting. This document shall not be considered a verbatim copy of every
word spoken at the meeting.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING, NLACRC, FEBRUARY 12, 2025

15



Agenda Item Detail Sheet

ACTION X
ACTION/CONSENT
DISCUSSION -
INFO ONLY -

Date: March 12, 2025.

To: Board of Trustees

From: Lindquist, Von Husen & Joyce

Subject: Approval of Lindquist, Von Husen & Joyce Presentation of NLACRC’s FY2023-24

Audited Financial Statements

BACKGROUND/GENERAL:

Audited financial statements are required in California’s Welfare and Institution Code
Section 4639. (a)

“The governing board of a regional center shall annually contract with an
independent accounting firm for an audited financial statement. The audit report and
accompanying management letter shall be reviewed and approved by the regional
center board and submitted to the department within 60 days of completion and
before April 1 of each year. Upon submission to the department, the audit report
and accompanying management letter shall be made available to the public by the
regional center. It is the intent of the Legislature that no additional funds be
appropriated for this purpose.”

REASON FOR CURRENT ITEM:

Compliance with the requirements stated above. Lindquist, Von Husen & Joyce will be
presenting their findings during the meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Board approve Lindquist, Von Husen & Joyce’s FY2023-24 Audited Financial
Statements as presented.

16



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY
REGIONAL CENTER

(A California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

TENTATIVE & PRELIMINARY
For Discussion Purposes Only

17



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Independent AUAItOr’S REPOTT.......ccuiiiiiiiiieiiieeie ettt ettt ettt et e e te e e tee e taeeteeestaeesseeessaeenseesnsaeenseesnsaeanseesnseeenseesnsaesssenans 1
Statements of FINANCIal POSIEION .....c..couiiuiiiiiiieiiiieitee sttt sttt et ettt et be bt bt et e st e e e e b e 3
STALEMENLS OF ACTIVILIES ...eeutietieiieieite ettt ettt ettt ettt h et e et e et e sate s bt e sb e et e en et ea bt eaeeebeeabeenbe e beeatesaeesetesbee bt enteenteeneeeseenbeans 4
Statements 0f FUNCHONAL EXPENSES......cccuiiuiirieriieiieiieieeiestte ettt sttt et et e esteesaeeseesse e seeseensesasessnesseenseanseenseansenssenseens 5
Statements OF CaSh FLOWS .....c.iiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt ea e e s bt e bt et e et e e atesaeesbeenbeenteenteeseeebeenanans 7
Notes t0 FINAnCial StAtEIMENTS ... ..c..eitiiiiitietiee ettt et et ettt saee st e esb e et e es b e esee st e esbe e bt e beemaesatesaeesbeenseenee 8
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government AUAILING STANAAFAS ..............c.ccccoeouiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt et ettt st st sae e bt ettt e eteeaeenaeens 22
Schedule of Findings, Questioned Costs, and ReCOMMENAAtIONS...........c.eeriieierierieniieieeie e seeseeeie e eeeeaeseaesseeseeseenees 24

18



Board of Trustees
North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc.
Chatsworth, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc., a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024
and 2023, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of North
Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc. as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
(Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are required to be independent of North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about North Los Angeles County Regional Center,
Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to
be issued.

19



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated , 2025
on our consideration of North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of North Los
Angeles County Regional Center’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering North Los Angeles
County Regional Center’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

TENTATIVE & PRELIMINARY
For Discussion Purposes Only

, 2025

20



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash — client trust funds
Receivables:

Contract receivable — State of California (Note 3)

Receivable from Intermediate Care Facilities
Other receivables and prepaid expenses
Due from State — accrued vacation and other employee benefits (Note 3)
Due from State — equipment financed with debt (Note 4)

Total current assets

Right-of-use assets — operating leases (Note 5)

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued vacation and other leave benefits (Note 3)
Note payable (Note 4)
Retirement health care plan obligation (Note 8)
Pension plan obligation (Note 9)
Unexpended client support
Operating lease liabilities — current portion (Note 5)
Total current liabilities

Operating lease liabilities — net of current portion (Note 5)
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Without donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2024 2023
$§ 26,117,156 § 55,089,362
8,752,337 8,339,548
82,066,383 30,129,661
5,480,515 4,818,455
84,165,949 68,079,691
44,481,970 61,323,848
771,467 944,317
251,835,777 228,724,882
31,391,133 35,382,822

$ 283,226,910

$ 264,107,704

§ 114,412,909 § 91,864,346
1,861,892 1,860,811
4,253,222 3,363,654

771,467 944,317
10,215,401 18,914,599
30,013,347 39,045,595
10,264,266 8,774,410

5,684,530 5,342,102
177,477,034 170,109,834
25,706,603 30,040,720
203,183,637 200,150,554
80,043,273 63,957,150
80,043,273 63,957,150

$ 283,226,910

$ 264,107,704

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

3
21



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Support and revenue:
Grants — State DDS
Intermediate Care Facilities (ICF)
Interest
Other income

Total support and revenue
Expenses:
Program services:
Direct client services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Total expenses
Change in net deficit before health care and
pension plan-related changes other than net

period post-retirement benefit income (cost)

Health care and pension plan-related changes other than
net periodic post-retirement benefit income

Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

2024 2023

$ 939,932,902 $ 798,853,449
13,830,773 12,707,817
127,982 48,451
4,056 5,717
953,895,713 811,615,434
940,523,428 799,780,443
12,870,832 12,219,694
953,394,260 812,000,137
501,453 (384,703)
15,584,670 14,413,409
16,086,123 14,028,706
63,957,150 49,928,444

$ 80,043,273 $ 63,957,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

4
22



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Salaries and related expenses:
Salaries
Employee health and retirement benefits
Payroll taxes

Total salaries and related expenses

Purchase of services:
Other purchased services
Residential services
Day program

Facility rent

General expenses

Equipment purchases

Contract and consulting services

Communication

Legal fees

Insurance

Data processing

Facility maintenance

Equipment rental

Office expenses

ARCA dues

Staff travel

Accounting fees

Board expenses

Printing

Equipment maintenance

Total expenses

2024
Program Management

Services and General Total
$ 41,181,657 $ 6,530,401 $ 47,712,058
17,801,469 2,513,278 20,314,747
582,565 93,274 675,839
59,565,691 9,136,953 68,702,644
575,436,925 - 575,436,925
174,314,894 - 174,314,894
117,619,802 - 117,619,802
5,642,918 319,579 5,962,497
2,420,011 280,769 2,700,780
1,843,486 104,653 1,948,139
1,090,808 1,464,984 2,555,792
1,256,585 110,595 1,367,180
307,422 246,728 554,150
386,032 171,372 557,404
- 325,699 325,699
- 218,147 218,147
193,123 17,167 210,290
165,788 50,903 216,691
- 163,823 163,823
255,577 29,599 285,176
3,500 98,329 101,829
- 107,831 107,831
18,166 1,221 19,387
2,700 22,480 25,180
$ 940,523,428 $ 12,870,832 $ 953,394,260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5
23



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2023
Program Management
Services and General Total
Salaries and related expenses:
Salaries $ 38,020,385 $ 6,209,310 $ 44,229,695
Employee health and retirement benefits 17,503,848 2,569,981 20,073,829
Payroll taxes 536,430 86,723 623,153
Total salaries and related expenses 56,060,663 8,866,014 64,926,677
Purchase of services:
Other purchased services 491,601,944 - 491,601,944
Residential services 143,304,030 - 143,304,030
Day program 96,273,710 - 96,273,710
Facility rent 5,124,154 300,505 5,424,659
General expenses 3,091,635 474,873 3,566,508
Equipment purchases 813,880 59,042 872,922
Contract and consulting services 1,183,732 902,777 2,086,509
Communication 1,130,425 92,512 1,222,937
Legal fees 300,506 106,678 407,184
Insurance 335,433 153,027 488,460
Data processing - 519,052 519,052
Facility maintenance - 420,538 420,538
Equipment rental 214,730 19,579 234,309
Office expenses 161,639 (59,704) 101,935
ARCA dues - 106,405 106,405
Staff travel 153,016 36,337 189,353
Accounting fees - 95,650 95,650
Board expenses - 84,953 84,953
Printing 30,946 2,288 33,234
Equipment maintenance - 39,168 39,168

Total expenses $ 799,780,443 $ 12,219,694 $ 812,000,137

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

6
24



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of right-of-use assets — operating lease
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Cash — client trust funds
Contract receivable — State of California
Receivable from Intermediate Care Facilities
Other receivables and prepaid expenses
Due from State — deferred rent
Due from State — accrued vacation and other employee benefits
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued vacation and other leave benefits
Retirement health care plan obligation
Pension plan obligation
Deferred rent liability
Unexpended client support
Operating lease liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Reimbursement from State contract for equipment
Purchase of equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Increase in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash, end of year

Supplementary information:
Cash paid for interest

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Lease assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations — operating lease

2024 2023
$ 16,086,123 $ 14,028,706
4,590,092 4,204,354
(412,789) (932,382)
(51,936,722) (7,892,453)
(662,060) (642,617)
(16,086,258) (14,882,456)
- 2,488,745
16,841,878 12,029,423
22,548,563 21,876,147
1,081 257,733
889,568 124,419
(8,699,198) (1,021,364)
(9,032,248) (11,132,478)
- (2,488,745)
1,489,856 990,695
(4,590,092) (4,204,354)
(28,972,206) 12,803,373
172,850 196,859
(172,850) (196,859)
(28,972,206) 12,803,373
55,089,362 42,285,989
$ 26,117,156 $ 55,089,362
$ 32,340 $ 42,806
$ 598403 $ 39,587,176

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7
25



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc. (the Center), was incorporated on March 13, 1974 as a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation under contract with the State of California Department of Developmental
Services (DDS) for the purpose of operating the Center and related activities. The Center was organized in accordance
with the provision of the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act (the Lanterman Act) of the Welfare and
Institutions Code of the State of California. In accordance with the Lanterman Act, the Center coordinates, through
outside providers, diagnostic and assessment of eligible services to persons with developmental disabilities and plans,
accesses, coordinates and monitors services to such individuals and their families. The Center is one of 21 regional
centers within the State of California system and serves San Fernando, Antelope, and Santa Clarita Valleys.

The Lanterman Act includes governance provisions regarding the composition of the Center’s Board of
Trustees. The Lanterman Act states that the Board shall be comprised of individuals with demonstrated interest in, or
knowledge of, developmental disabilities, and other relevant characteristics, and requires that a minimum of 50% of the
governing board be persons with developmental disabilities or their parents or legal guardians; and that no less than
25% of the members of the governing board shall be persons with developmental disabilities. In addition, a member of a
required advisory committee composed of persons representing the various categories of providers from which the
Center purchases client services, shall serve as a member of the board. To comply with the Lanterman Act, the Center’s
board of trustees includes persons with developmental disabilities, or their parents or legal guardians, who receive
services from the Center and a client service provider of the Center.

The Center’s mission is to provide lifelong partnerships and planning to persons with developmental
disabilities by promoting their civil and personal rights, providing comprehensive information, advocating in
cooperation with consumers, promoting and providing quality of services, and supporting full participation of
consumers and families in all aspects of community life.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

State of California Contract

The Center operates under an annual cost-reimbursement contract with DDS under the Lanterman Act. The
maximum expenditure under the contract is limited to the contract amount plus interest earned. The Center is required to
maintain accounting records in accordance with the Regional Center Fiscal Manual, issued by DDS, and is required to
have DDS approval for certain expenses. In the event of termination or nonrenewal of the contract, the State of
California maintains the right to assume control of the Center’s operation and the obligation of its liabilities.

Under the terms of these contracts, funded expenditures are not to exceed $993,463,341, $934,288,443, and
$734,297,364 for the FY 2023-2024, FY 2022-2023, and FY 2021-2022 contract years, respectively, and are subject to
budget amendments. As of June 30, 2024, actual net expenditures under the FY 2023-2024, FY 2022-2023, and FY
2021-2022 contracts were $814,981,115, $890,697,014, and $697,411,877, respectively. The unexpended balance under
these contracts amounting to $178,482,226, $43,591,429, and $36,885,487 for the FY 2023-2024, FY 2022-2023, and
FY 2021-2022 contract years, represents a conditional contribution that will be used to fund expenditures in the next
fiscal years until the contract amounts are fully expended or expire. The Center could bill DDS in the future for
expenses relating to previous fiscal years if the expenses billed relate to the previous fiscal year. As a result, the Center
internally tracks revenue by current year, previous year and second previous year.

Accounting Method

The Center uses the accrual method of accounting, which recognizes income in the period earned and expenses
when incurred, regardless of the timing of payments.

26



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The Center reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net
assets, as applicable: net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

e Net assets without donor restrictions include those assets over which the Board of Trustees has
discretionary control in carrying out the operations of the Center.

e Net assets with donor restrictions include those assets subject to donor restrictions and for which the
applicable restrictions were not met as of the end of the current reporting period. Some donor-imposed
restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events
specified by the donor. When a donor restriction expires — that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished — net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor stipulates the
resources be maintained in perpetuity.

The Center had no net assets with donor restrictions as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Revenue Recognition:

Contributions

Contributions are recognized as revenue when they are unconditionally communicated. Grants represent
contributions if resource providers receive no value in exchange for the assets transferred. Contributions are recorded at
their fair value as support without donor restrictions or support with donor restrictions, depending on the absence or
existence of donor-imposed restrictions as applicable. When a restriction expires (that is when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. If donors’
restrictions are satisfied in the same period that the contribution is received, the contribution is reported as support
without donor restrictions.

Government contracts, which are funded on a reimbursement basis, are shown as revenue without donor
restriction. A portion of the Center’s revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants,
which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses.
Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Center has incurred expenditures in compliance with specific
contract or grant provisions.

Federal Grants

U.S. Department of Education

The Center is a sub-recipient to DDS with regard to the Special Education Grants for Infants and Families, Part C,
which provides funding for early intervention services for infants and toddlers, through age 3, as authorized by Public
Law 102-119.

27



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

This grant is conditional upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. The Center recognized grants revenue totaling $694,192 and $789,556 from this award during the year ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Amounts earned and released within the same year under conditional awards are
reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions in the accompanying statements of activities.

Leases

An accounting standard on leases, required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, requires lessees to account for leases as either finance leases or operating leases and to recognize right-of-use
(ROU) assets and corresponding lease liabilities on the statement of financial position for all leases other than leases
with terms of 12 months or less. For finance leases, lessees would recognize interest expense and amortization of the
ROU asset, and for operating leases, lessees would recognize straight-line total rent expense. The Center does not
recognize rent expense on a straight-line basis and the impact of this is not significant since there would be a
corresponding adjustment to accrued revenue from the State DDS cost-reimbursement contract. The accounting
standard also requires additional disclosures about the amount, timing, and uncertainty of cash flows arising from
leases.

Cash and Restricted Cash

Cash is defined as cash in demand deposit accounts as well as cash on hand. Restricted cash are funds
restricted as to their use, regardless of liquidity. Cash held in trust for clients is not included in total cash shown on the
statement of cash flows. The Center occasionally maintains cash on deposit at a bank in excess of the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation limit. The uninsured cash balance, including restricted cash, was approximately $26,712,000 as
of June 30, 2024. The Center has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Contract and Other Receivables

The majority of the Center’s receivables represents or relates to the cost-reimbursement contract with DDS.
Receivables are recorded at their net realizable value. The Center uses the allowance method to account for
uncollectible receivables. Management believes that the receivables are fully collectible and, therefore, has not provided
an allowance for doubtful accounts as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

State Equipment

State Equipment is stated at cost of acquisition. Pursuant to the terms of the DDS contract, equipment
purchases become the property of the State of California and, accordingly, are charged as expenses when incurred. The
Center expenses the cost of equipment upon acquisition if purchased with funds from the DDS contract in accordance
with the Regional Center Fiscal Manual.

State Equipment purchases for the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $133,990 and $109,475,
respectively. State Equipment disposals for the year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $426,627 and $564,601,
respectively. The capitalized equipment and reciprocating offset account at June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $4,058,394
and $4,351,031, respectively.

The Center also owns non-State equipment, including purchases funded by the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”), which was fully depreciated as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 amounting to
$4,978,291.

10
28



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Accrued Vacation, Sick and Other Leave Benefits

The Center has accrued a liability for vacation and sick leave benefits earned by employees which is
reimbursable under the DDS contract; however, such benefits are reimbursed under the DDS contract only when
actually paid. The amount of accrued vacation and other leave benefits is included in the amount due from the State of
California (See Note 3).

Post-Retirement Health Care Plan and Pension Plan

The Center is required to recognize the funded status of a benefit plan, measured as the difference between
plan assets at fair value and the benefit obligation, in the statement of financial position, with an offsetting charge or
credit to net assets. Gains or losses, prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as
components of net period benefit cost, will be recognized each year as a separate charge or credit to net assets.

Income Taxes

The Center is exempt from federal income taxes under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and the
related California code sections. Contributions to the Center qualify for the charitable contribution deduction.

The Center believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have any
uncertain tax positions that are material to the financial statements. The Center’s federal and state information returns
for the years 2020 through 2023 are subject to examination by regulatory agencies, generally for three years and four
years after they were filed for federal and state, respectively.

Functional Expenses Allocation

The costs of providing program and supporting services are summarized on a functional basis in the statement
of activities. The statement of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of expenses by function.
Expenses directly attributed to a specific functional area of the Center are reported as expenses of those functional areas,
while shared costs that benefit multiple functional areas have been allocated among the various functional areas based
on estimates determined by management to be equitable. Shared costs are generally allocated among the program and
supporting service benefited based on an analysis of personnel time and square footage occupied by the program and
supporting services.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through , 2025, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 3 - CONTRACT REIMBURSEMENT RECEIVABLE

The Center’s primary source of revenue is from the State of California. Subject to renewal, the Center enters
into a five-year contract with the State of California’s Department of Developmental Services that is subject to annual
appropriations by the State. The Center completed its fifth year of a 5-year contract with DDS that started fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020. Revenue from the State is recognized monthly when a claim (invoice) for reimbursement of actual
expenses is submitted to DDS for payment. These claims are paid at the State’s discretion either through a direct
payment to the Center or by offsetting the claim against the cash advances received by the Center from the State.

11
29



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Contract reimbursement receivables at June 30, 2024 and 2023 are summarized, as follows:

2024 2023
Claims submitted:
Current year $273,453,538  $238,595,003
Prior year 14,991,123 10,102,195
Second prior year 3,566,536 (99,428)
Third prior year and other receivable (548,381) (76,179)
Total $291,462,816  $248,521,591

DDS advanced the Center under the regional center contracts. For financial statement presentation, to the
extent there are claims receivable, these advances have been offset against the claims receivable from DDS as follows:

2024 2023
Contracts receivable $291,462,816  $248,521,591
Contract advances (209,396,433)  (218,391,930)
Net contracts receivable/contract advances $ 82,066,383 $ 30,129,661

In addition, the Center has accrued receivables from the State for expenses that will be settled in cash in future
years. These expenses are required to be recognized as liabilities under generally accepted accounting principles;
however, such benefits are reimbursed by the state contract only when actually paid. These expenses relate to accrued
vacation and other employee benefits and the obligations for the post-retirement health care benefits and pension plan.

The Center’s contract with DDS includes various fiscal provisions, which provide that the State of California
retains all rights, title, and interest to the funds provided by DDS and that funds received from DDS may only be used
for the purpose of satisfying claims against or expenses of the Center incurred pursuant to and in the performance of its
contract with DDS.

Due from State — accrued vacation and other employee benefits consisted of the following as of June 30, 2024
and 2023 are summarized, as follows:

2024 2023
Vacation and other employee benefits $ 4,253,222 $ 3,363,654
Retirement health care and pension plan obligation,
net of unrecognized loss on pension 40,228,748 57,960,194
$§ 44481970 $ 61,323,848
12

30



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 4 - LINE OF CREDIT AND NOTE PAYABLE

In May 2021, the Center obtained a revolving line of credit (LOC) agreement with a bank whereby it may
borrow up to $55,000,000 until the expiration of the agreement on June 30, 2022. In May 2022, the Center amended the
LOC agreement by increasing the maximum line amount up to $60,000,000 and extending the maturity date through
June 30, 2023. In June 2023, the Center amended the LOC agreement by increasing the maximum line amount up to
$70,000,000 and extending the maturity date through June 30, 2024. Borrowings are unsecured with interest payable
monthly at the greater of the Secured Overnight Financing Rate plus 2.10% or 1% below the bank’s prime rate. There
was no balance outstanding as of June 30, 2024. The agreement contains affirmative covenants. The Center was in
compliance with all covenants as of June 30, 2024.In May 2024, the Center amended the LOC agreement by increasing
the maximum line amount up to $80,000,000 (reduced to $70,000,000 from September 1, 2024 through February 28,
2025) and extending the maturity date through June 30, 2025.

During March 2021, the Center entered into an equipment financing agreement with a bank to finance a
maximum loan amount of $3,000,000 for costs associated with relocation to a new facility. The Center drew $1,358,728
under this agreement of which $771,467 is outstanding as of June 30, 2024 and $944,317 was outstanding as of
June 30, 2023. The note bears interest at a fixed rate of 3.71% with monthly payments of principal and interest of
$18,389, with the final payment due March 31, 2028. The agreement contains affirmative covenants. The Center was in
compliance with all covenants as of June 30, 2024.

The relocation costs will be reimbursed in full by the State and any equipment purchases will be owned by the
State. As a result, there is a corresponding receivable balance in an equal amount included in due from state - equipment
financed with debt on the statement of financial position.

The following future principal payments are to be made under this agreement:

Fiscal year ended June 30,

2025 $ 195372
2026 202,739
2027 210,381
2028 162,975

$ 771,467

NOTE 5 - OPERATING LEASES

The Center leases office spaces and equipment under operating leases. The leases have remaining lease terms
of 2 to 12 years. Rental expense included in operating expenses in 2024 and 2023 was $5,962,497 and $5,424,659,
respectively.

As of June 30, 2024, the weighted average remaining lease term and discount rate for the operating leases was
6 years and 2.90%, respectively. The lease asset and liability were calculated utilizing the risk-free discount rate
according to the Center’s elected policy. The options to renew the operating leases were considered when assessing the
value of the right-of-use (ROU) assets when the Center is reasonably certain that it will exercise its option to renew a
lease.

As of June 30, 2024, the ROU assets had a balance of $31,391,133, as shown in noncurrent assets on the
statement of financial position; the lease liabilities are included in other current liabilities ($5,684,530) and other
long-term liabilities ($25,706,603).

13
31



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

The maturities of lease liabilities are estimated as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2025 $§ 5,684,530
2026 5,855,066
2027 4,764,994
2028 2,329,045
2029 2,398,915
Thereafter 13,903,436
Total lease payments 34,935,986
Less amount representing interest (3,544,853)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 31,391,133

NOTE 6 — CASH — CLIENT TRUST FUNDS AND UNEXPENDED CLIENT SUPPORT

The Center functions as custodian for the receipt of certain governmental payments and resulting
disbursements made on behalf of regional center consumers. These cash balances are segregated from the operating
cash accounts of the Center and are restricted for consumer support. Since the Center is acting as an agent in processing
these transactions, no revenue or expense is reflected on the accompanying statements of activities. The following is a
summary of operating activity not reported in the statements of activities for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Support:
Social Security and other client support $ 8,212,193 § 10,254,067
Disbursements:
Living out of home $ 4,013,193 $ 5,395,351
Other disbursements 4,199,000 4,858,716

$ 8212,193 § 10,254,067

NOTE 7 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restriction limiting their use,
within one year of the statement of financial position at June 30, 2024 and 2023, comprise the following:

2024 2023
Financial assets at end of year available within one year:
Cash $ 26,117,156 $§ 55,089,362
Contract reimbursement receivable, net of contract advance 82,066,383 30,129,661
Accounts receivable from Intermediate Care Facilities 5,480,515 4,818,455
Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year $113,664,054 $ 90,037,478

14
32



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Each regional center submits a monthly purchase of service expenditure projection to DDS, beginning in
December of each fiscal year. By February 1st of each year, DDS shall allocate to all regional centers no less than one
hundred percent (100%) of the enacted budget for Operations and ninety-nine percent (99%) of the enacted budget for
Purchase of Service. To do this, it may be necessary to amend the Center’s contract in order to allocate funds made
available from budget augmentations and to move funds among regional centers. In the event that DDS determines that
a regional center has insufficient funds to meet its contractual obligations, DDS shall make best efforts to secure
additional funds and/or provide the regional center with regulatory and statutory relief. The contract with DDS allows
for adjustments to the Center’s allocations and for the payment of claims up to two years after the close of each fiscal
year.

In addition, the Center maintains a line of credit (see Note 4) to manage cash flow requirements as needed
should there be delays in reimbursement for expenditures from DDS.

NOTE 8 - POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH CARE PLAN

The Center sponsors a post-retirement health care plan through the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (PERS) for its employees. The actuarial cost method used for determining the benefit obligations is the
Projected Unit Benefit Cost Method. Under this method, the actuarial present value of projected benefits is the value of
benefits expected to be paid for current active employees and retirees. The Accumulated Post-Retirement Benefit
Obligation (APBO) is the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to employee service rendered prior to the
valuation date. The APBO equals the present value of projected benefits multiplied by a fraction equal to service to date
over service at full eligibility age. The Periodic Benefit Cost is the actuarial present value of benefits attributed to one
year of service. This equals the present value of benefits divided by service at expected retirement. The actuarial
assumptions are summarized below:

June 30, 2024  June 30, 2023

Discount Rate

Used to determine Net Periodic Benefit Cost 5.20% 4.65%

Used to determine Benefit Obligations 5.50% 5.20%
Long-term Rate of Return on Plan Assets

Used to determine Net Periodic Benefit Cost 6.00% 6.00%

Used to determine Benefit Obligations 6.00% 6.00%

General inflation 2.30% 2.30%
Health Cost Trend

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 5.59% 10.29%

Rate to which the cost trend is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate) 3.75% 4.25%

Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2071 2070
Number of Participants

Active employees 636 610

Retired employees 183 183

The Center is required to recognize an expense each year equal to the Net Periodic Post Retirement Benefit
Cost.

15
33



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

The Center recognizes the post-retirement health care plan liability as the unfunded APBO in its financial
statements. All previously unrecognized actuarial gains or losses are reflected in the statement of financial position. The
plan items not yet recognized as a component of periodic plan expenses, but included as a separate charge to net assets,
are unamortized actuarial net gain of $27,163,855 and $19,397,998 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

The pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost increased net assets by $7,765,858 and
$1,538,413 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plan’s benefit obligations:

June 30, 2024  June 30, 2023

Obligations at beginning of year $ 50,281,141 $ 48,354,029
Service cost 2,997,901 2,895,645
Interest cost 2,466,253 2,202,866
Actuarial (gain) loss (7,077,235) (1,490,806)
Benefits paid (1,663,167) (1,680,593)
Obligations at end of year $ 47,004,893 $§ 50,281,141

The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plan’s assets:

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 31,366,542 § 28,418,066
Actual return on plan assets 4,001,537 2,819,210
Employer contributions 3,084,580 1,809,859
Benefits paid (1,663,167) (1,680,593)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 36,789,492 31,366,542
Net amount recognized in the statements of financial position $ (10,215,401) $ (18,914,599)

Net periodic post-retirement benefit cost consists of the following components:

June 30, 2024  June 30, 2023

Service cost $ 2,997,901 $ 2,895,645
Interest cost 2,466,253 2,202,866
Return on assets (1,924,635) (1,708,962)
Amortization of (gains) or losses (1,338,279) (1,062,641)
Net periodic post-retirement benefits costs $ 2,201,240 $ 2,326,908

The net accumulated amount recognized as a separate increase in net assets of $27,163,855 and $19,397,998 as
of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, for prior service cost and unamortized net actuarial gain (loss) does not have an
offsetting accrual from the DDS to reflect the future reimbursement of such benefits. The accumulated gain is
recognized in prepaid expense and other assets on the statements of financial position.

16
34



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Plan Assets

The plan’s assets are reported at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A
recent accounting standard has established a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable
inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Center has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted market prices included in level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the plan’s assets at fair value as of

June 30:
June 30, 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 973,710 §$ - 3 - 3 973,710
Mutual funds:
Equity 19,392,081 2,648,226 - 22,040,307
Fixed income 8,038,377 5,137,098 - 13,775,475
Balanced - - - -
Total $ 29,004,168 $§ 7,785324 $ - $ 36,789,492
June 30, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,326,553 $ - $ - $ 1,326,553
Mutual funds:
Equity 19,206,937 351,803 - 19,558,740
Fixed income 7,982,007 2,035,631 - 10,017,638
Balanced - 463,611 - 463,611
Total $ 28,515497 $§ 2,851,045 $ - $ 31,366,542

The investment objective of the plan is to provide a rate of return commensurate with a moderate degree of risk
of loss of principal and return volatility. A trustee administers the plan assets and investment responsibility for the
assets is assigned to outside investment managers. The assets of the plan are periodically rebalanced to remain within
the desired target allocations.

17
35



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Variability of Estimated APBO

Actual future costs may vary significantly from the estimates used in calculating the APBO for a variety of
reasons. Future costs may vary from estimates due to a variety of factors including, but not limited to, changes in
medical costs, applicable laws, mortality rates, retirement rates, termination rates, rate of return, or other changes in
economic or demographic assumptions.

Cash Flow Estimates for Future Benefit Payments

The following estimated benefit payments for the next ten years are expected to be paid on a fiscal year basis
as follows:

Years Ending June 30,
2024 $ 1,757,040
2025 1,897,059
2026 2,030,251
2027 2,173,443
2028 2,286,056
2029 — 2034 15,552,074
Total $ 25,695,923

NOTE 9 - PENSION PLAN

The Center contributes to the California Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS), an agent
multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within California. Substantially all of the Center's employees participate in PERS.

PERS uses the Entry Age Normal Cost Method to fund benefits. Under this method, projected benefits are
determined for all members and the associated liabilities are spread in a manner that produces level annual cost as a
percent of pay in each year from the age of hire to the assumed retirement age. The cost allocated to the current fiscal
year is called the normal cost.

Employee contributions are approximately 7% of salary and wages. The Center is required to contribute the
remaining amount necessary to fund benefits for its employees, using the actuarial basis adopted by the PERS Board of
Administration. Total retirement expense for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $3,198,872 and $2,661,706,
respectively.

The actuarial calculations and contribution rates generated by CalPERS are based on various assumptions
about long-term demographic and economic trends and behavior. The CalPERS actuarial assumptions and calculations
are in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) guidance. However, GASB guidance is not
applicable to the Center, as the Center is a nonprofit organization where the appropriate generally accepted accounting
principles for reporting should be in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) guidance. In order
for the Center to obtain a valuation report in accordance with FASB, the Center has obtained the census data from PERS
along with plan asset balances for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 and had an actuarial valuation
performed in accordance with FASB to record the unfunded pension obligation and related pension expense in the
statements of financial position and statements of activities, respectively, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2024
and 2023. The actuarial assumptions are summarized below:

18
36



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

Economic Assumptions

Discount Rate 5.20%
Long-term Rate of Return on Plan Assets 6.80%
Salary Increases (annually) 4.00%
Number of Participants
Active members 647
Transferred members 105
Terminated members 504
Retired members or beneficiaries 296

4.70%
6.80%
4.00%

610

92
431
289

The Center is required to recognize an expense each year equal to the Net Periodic Post-Retirement Benefit

Cost.

The Center recognizes the pension plan liability as the unfunded ABO in its financial statements. All
previously unrecognized actuarial gains or losses are reflected in the statements of financial position. The plan items not
yet recognized as a component of periodic plan expenses, but included as a separate charge to net assets, are:

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

Unamortized experience loss $ 12,596,360

Unamortized loss from asset return (471,724)
Unamortized gain from assumption changes (67,857,229)
Amortization amount 3,522,204

$ 10,145,991
3,767,772
(59,398,895)
1,093,555

End of year gain ($ 52,210,389)

$ (44,391,577)

The pension-related changes other than net periodic pension cost increased net assets by $7,878,232 and

$12,385,371 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plan's benefit obligations:

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

Obligations at beginning of year $193,767,457

$196,591,469

Service cost 9,015,409 9,375,077
Interest cost 10,042,255 9,175,918
Actuarial gain (8,458,334) (16,444,918)
Plan amendment - 549,045
Experience loss 2,450,369 1,543,386
Benefits and expenses paid (6,332,195) (7,022,520)
Obligations at end of year $200,484,961  $193,767,457

19
37



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.

(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plan's assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets

Employer and employee contributions
Benefits and expenses paid

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Net amount recognized in the statements of financial position

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

$154,721,862  $146,413,396
14,797,609 9,003,533
7,284,338 6,327,453
(6,332,195) (7,022,520)
170,471,614 154,721,862

$ (30,013,347)

$ (39,045,595)

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost consists of the following components:

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized net actuarial gains

Net periodic post-retirement benefit costs

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

$ 9015409 $ 9375077
10,042,255 9,175,918
(10,558,113) (9,936,514)
59,420 59,420
(2,428,649) (1,093,555)

$ 6130322 $ 7,580,346

The accumulated net amount recognized as a separate increase to net assets of $52,210,389 and $44,391,577 as
of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, for unamortized net actuarial gain (loss) does not have an offsetting accrual
from the DDS to reflect the future reimbursement of such benefits. Gains are recognized in prepaid expense and other
assets and losses are offset with receivables from the State for pension plan on the statements of financial position as of

June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The following estimated benefit payments for the next ten years are expected to be paid on a fiscal year basis

as follows:

Years Ending June 30,
2025 $ 7,104,939
2026 7,652,170
2027 8,081,187
2028 8,479,926
2029 9,051,117
2030 - 2034 55,904,430
Total $ 96,273,769

20
38




NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of the DDS contract, an audit may be performed by an authorized state
representative. Should such audit disclose any unallowable costs, the Center may be liable to the State for
reimbursement of such costs. In the opinion of the Center’s management, the effect of any disallowed costs would be
immaterial to the financial statements as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

The Center’s contract with DDS provides funding for services under the Lanterman Act. In the event that the
operations of the Center result in a deficit position at the end of the contract year, DDS may reallocate surplus funds
within the State of California system to supplement the Center’s funding. Should a system-wide deficit occur, DDS is
required to report to the Governor of California and the appropriate fiscal committee of the State Legislature and
recommend actions to secure additional funds or reduce expenditures. DDS recommendations are subsequently
reviewed by the Governor and the Legislature and a decision is made with regard to specific actions, including the
possible suspension of the entitlement.

Collective Bargaining Agreements

The Center retains a substantial portion of its labor force through Social Services Union, Local 721, Services
Employees International Union. This labor force is subject to collective bargaining agreements and, as such,
renegotiation of such agreements could expose the Center to an increase in hourly costs and work stoppages.

In February 2023, the Center ratified a new collect bargaining agreement effective February 17, 2023, through
February 16, 2028.

Unemployment Insurance

The Center has elected to self-insure its unemployment insurance. The Center is required to reimburse the state
of California for benefits paid to its former employees.

Legal Matters

The Center is involved in various claims and legal actions in the normal course of business. Based upon
counsel and management’s opinion, the resolution of such matters is either covered by insurance or will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial position, result of operation or cash flows.

21
39



Board of Directors
North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc.
Chatsworth, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc., which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated , 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered North Los Angeles County
Regional Center, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of North Los Angeles County Regional
Center, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of North Los Angeles
County Regional Center, Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We
identified certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item Finding No. 2024-001 that we consider to be material weaknesses.

22
40



Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc.’s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc.’s Response to Finding

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on North Los Angeles
County Regional Center, Inc.’s response to the finding identified in our audit and described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. North Los Angeles County Regional Center, Inc.’s response was not
subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

TENTATIVE & PRELIMINARY
For Discussion Purposes Only

,2024

23
41



NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER, INC.
(4 California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS, QUESTIONED COSTS, AND
RECOMMENDATIONS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Finding No. 2024-001 — A Significant Amount of Undeposited Checks and Material Reconciling Items between North Los
Angeles County Regional Center’s Receivable Balances and Confirmation Reply from DDS

Condition:

The receivable balances of North Los Angeles County Regional Center appeared to be materially
different from the confirmation reply from DDS due to several unrecorded claims offsets and undeposited
checks. North Los Angeles County Regional Center received DDS claim offset letters in October 2023 and
May 2024 amounting to $217 million which were not recorded until January 2025.

North Los Angeles County Regional Center also received 42 checks from DDS during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2024 which were not deposited until December 2024. These checks total approximately $9.6
million of undeposited funds as of June 30, 2024.

Criteria:

North Los Angeles County Regional Center is responsible for the preparation and fair representation
of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Good internal controls over cash include the timely deposit of checks received.

Effect:

The receivable balances from the confirmation reply received from DDS did not match the receivable
balances of North Los Angeles County Regional Center for contract years 2023-2024, 2022-2023 and
2021-2022. There is also a risk that checks held but not deposited for more than six months may become stale
and must be reissued by DDS.

Cause:

Due to heavy workload demands and challenges, the accounting staff responsible for coding the DDS
claim offset letters gave priority to other tasks, and as a result, did not prioritize the task of coding and
forwarding the claim offset letters on a timely basis to appropriate staff for recording to the general ledger. The
same accounting staff is responsible for coding DDS checks for deposit. Similarly, due to heavy workload
demands and challenges, the staff prioritized other tasks and did not code and forward the checks on a timely
basis to appropriate staff for deposit and posting to the general ledger.

Recommendation:

Management should strengthen its existing internal controls over cash and claim offset letters by
implementing a monthly reconciliation between the records of North Los Angeles County Regional Center and
DDS to detect discrepancies earlier.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions:

North Los Angeles County Regional Center understands the importance of timely deposits and timely
recording of transactions. The unrecorded DDS claim offset letters and undeposited checks were related to a
staff performance issue, which has been addressed and resolved. Additionally, North Los Angeles County
Regional Center will strengthen our existing internal controls, including implementing procedures to identify
when checks have not been forwarded for deposit and procedures for periodic reconciliations with DDS
records by a staff member different than the one responsible for coding DDS checks and claim offset letters in
order to detect discrepancies earlier.

24
42



Agenda Item Detail Sheet

ACTION X
ACTION/CONSENT
DISCUSSION -
INFO ONLY

Date: March 12, 2025.
To: Board of Trustees
From: Betsy Monahan, Human Resources Director and Executive Committee

Subject: Approval of the Conflict of Resolution Plan for Jacquie Colton

BACKGROUND/GENERAL:

Origin of conflicts of interest can be found in Welfare & Institutions Code; Title 17
California Code of Regulations The prohibition against Regional Center employee conflicts
of interest originates from section 4626 of the Welfare & Institutions Code. Subsection (d)
of said section 4626 provides:

“The department shall ensure that no regional center employee or board member has

a conflict of interest with an entity that receives regional center funding...”
NLACRC’s current Bylaws Article IV, Section 4, subsection 1 states:

“If a present or potential conflict of interest is identified for the Executive Director
or a board member that cannot be eliminated, a copy of the conflict-of-interest
statement and a plan that proposes mitigation measures, including timeframes and
actions the regional center governing board or the individual, or both, will take to

mitigate the conflict of interest.”

Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 54533 “Present or Potential Conflict
of Interest, Identified, Proposed Conflict Resolution Plan Content, Timelines for

Submissions of Proposed Conflict of Resolution Plan” states:

“When a present or potential conflict of interest is identified for a regional center
board member, executive director, employee, contractor, agent or consultant, the
present or potential conflict shall be either eliminated or mitigated and managed
through a Conflict Resolution Plan, or the individual shall resign his or her position
within the regional center or regional center governing board.”

REASON FOR CURRENT ITEM:

Board of Trustee member Jacquie Colton has a potential financial interest in Regional Center
operations by virtue of her role as an LVN for ASAP Home Health -, a NLACRC provider;

43



Ms. Colton is employed with ASAP Home Health, a vendor of North Los Angeles County
Regional Center. NLACRC has developed a Conflict of Resolution Plan to address and
mitigate any potential conflicts of interest. Once approved by the Board of Trustees, the
plan will be submitted to DDS for final approval.

After review and discussion at the February 27, 2025, meeting, the Executive Committee
made no changes and recommends that the Board of Trustees approve the of the Conflict-
of-Interest Resolution Plan for Ms. Jacquie Colton.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Board approve the Conflict-of-Interest Resolution Plan for Ms. Jacquie Colton,
Board of Trustees member.

44



NOTIFICATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST,
AND
B F FLICT RESOLUTI PL,

JACQUIE COLTON - NLACRC BOARD MEMBER
NORTH LOS ANGELES COUNTY REGIONAL CENTER

I. Law Governing Conflicts of Interest

The prohibition against Regional Center employee or board member conflicts of interest
has its origin in section 4626 of the Welfare & Institutions Code. Subsection (d) of said section
4626 provides: "The department shall ensure that no regional center employee or board member
has a conflict of interest with an entity that receives regional center funding. “

That general prohibition is explained in more detail in Title 17 of the California Code of
Regulations, section 54520 "Positions Creating Conflicts of Interests for Regional Center
Governing Board Members and Executive Directors," which provides in pertinent part:

(a) A conflict of interest exists when a regional center governing board member... or
family member of such person is any of the following for a business entity, entity,
or provider as defined in section 54505 of these regulations... :

(1) agoverning board member

(2) aboard committee member

(3) adirector

(4) an officer

(5) an owner

(6) apartner

(7)  asharcholder

(8) atrustee

(9) anagent

(10) an employee

(11) a contractor

(12) a consultant

(13) aperson who holds any position of management

(14) a person who has decision or policy making authority.
(Emphasis added.)

Section 54505 states that: "Business Entity, Entity or Provider" means any individual or
business venture from whom or from which the regional center purchases, obtains or secures
goods or services to conduct its operations."

Further, Section 54533 states:

(a)  When a present or potential conflict of interest is identified for a regional
center board member, executive director, employee, contractor, agent, or
consultant, the present or potential conflict shall be either eliminated or
mitigated and managed through a Conflict Resolution Plan, or the
individual shall resign his or her position with the regional center or
regional center governing board.

45



IL.

III.

Jacquie Colton is a Board Member at North Los Angeles County Regional Center
(hereinafter "NLACRC" or "the Regional Center"). NLACRC Executive Director Angela Pao-
Johnson confirms that Jacquie Colton is a productive and valued member of the Board of Trustees.
Attached as Exhibit A is Jacquie Colton’s completed Conflict of Interest Reporting Statement.
As part of the Conflict Resolution Plan, she will remain in her position on the Board of Trustees.

Jacquie Colton has a potential financial interest in Regional Center operations by virtue of
her role as an LVN for ASAP Home Health —, a NLACRC provider; Ms. Colton is employed
with ASAP Home Health, a vendor of North Los Angeles County Regional Center. This creates
a direct conflict for Ms. Colton as defined by regulation. This document constitutes a disclosure
of this conflict, a Conflict Resolution Plan to mitigate any adverse consequences from this
relationship, and a request for approval of the Conflict Resolution Plan by DDS.

In short, this Conflict Resolution Plan will have Jacquie Colton remain in her position on the
NLACRC Board of Trustees, but limit her actions as a board member so that she in no way
participates in any role whatsoever with regard to ASAP Home Health or any other vendor who
provides respite, personal assistance and daycare services.

Kacts

The plan of action proposed herein is designed to eliminate any adverse consequences from
the conflict. To better understand how the plan will eliminate any adverse consequences, this
request will first provide the facts regarding Ms. Colton’s duties and responsibilities as a board
member and her roles with ASAP Home Health.

A. Jacquie Colton 's Duties as Board Member

As a board member, Jacquie Colton regularly meets with other board members of
NLACRC to create policy for the operation of the regional center. Policy is developed through
recommendations from board committees and the Executive Director. Direct operation is
delegated to the Executive Director who is hired by the board. Staff recommendations for policy
initiation or modification go the Executive Director, who, in tum, refers them to the board and/or
an appropriate board committee. A copy of the Board Member Responsibilities is attached as
Exhibit B.

Jacquie Colton's responsibilities as a member of the Board of Trustees of the NLACRC
would include, but not be limited to:

1. Attendance, either virtual or in-person, at monthly Board of Trustees
meetings, usually held on the second Wednesday of each month at 6:30 p.m.

2. Membership and attendance on one (1) or more board committees.

3. Board participation and advocacy will be focused on systems issues; issues

regarding an individual consumer, family or program will be directed to the
Executive Director's Office.

4. Identification of any potential conflict of interest as identified in Welfare and
Institutions Code, Sections 4626 and 4627 during the board member's term on
the board will be reported to the Executive Administrative Assistant to the board.

46



1V,

5. Completion of the Conflict-of-Interest Statement annually and MediCal
Provider Enrollment Form as applicable due to the regional center's funding and
contract with the State of California, Department of Developmental Services.

6. Completion of a W-9 form by board members who seek reimbursement for

childcare or personal care services under the Board Member Support policy.

Adherence to the board's Code of Conduct.

Attendance at the annual board orientation for all newly seated board members.

Participation in board-coordinated trainings and the annual board retreat.

0. Visitation to NLACRC-vendored programs is expected in order that board
members may be informed about the developmental disabilities service system.
Programs include a wide variety of residential and day programs as well as those
providers who deliver a specific service (e.g. school setting or transportation).

11.  Exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as may be
prescribed by the Board of Trustees and the bylaws.

= 0 %0

B. Jacquie Colton’s Duties at ASAP Home Health

ASAP Home Health is a service provider to NLACRC that provides the following
services:
In home respite services
Personal assistance
Daycare
As an employee of ASAP Home Health, Jacquie Colton provides respite, personal
assistance and daycare services solely to her Son, who is an NLACRC consumer.

nfli |

The Regional Center and its Executive Director, Angela Pao-Johnson, have concluded
that Jacquie Colton provides great value to the Board of NLACRC. After consideration of the
totality of the circumstances and a careful review of the facts, the Executive Director believes it
is in the best interests of the Regional Center to create and implement a Conflict Resolution Plan
to eliminate any adverse consequences from this relationship and seek approval of this plan by
DDS.

Initially, the first step in the Conflict Resolution Plan is to allow Ms. Colton to remain
in her position on the Board of Trustees, but to cease any activity or action that might in any way
impact ASAP Home Health. This will eliminate any instance in which Ms. Colton would have to
vote, give her opinion, analyze, assess the performance of, or take action for or against ASAP
Home Health, and would eliminate any possible action by Ms. Colton to recommend ASAP
Home Health or other similar available respite, personal assistance and daycare vendors.

The second part of the plan is to insulate Ms. Colton from any involvement whatsoever
with the generic type of provider like ASAP Home Health. She would recuse herself from
participation in any vote regarding, drafting, planning, or discussion of rules, policies, or
restrictions that would impact ASAP Home Health and all other respite, personal assistance
vendors. Any duties that potentially relate to ASAP Home Health or generic policies applicable
to such a vendor represent a small portion of the valuable duties she performs on behalf of the
Regional Center, and these duties can be easily delegated to other Regional Center board
members. Like other board members, Ms. Colton develops policy through recommendations
from the Executive Director, and thus works with numerous vendors on a variety of services.

47



Further, as the Conflict Resolution Plan details below, when any matter arises with
regard to ASAP Home Health respite, personal assistance and daycare vendors, she will agree not
to be involved in the discussion of the matter, the presentation of options to the Board, or the
decision or vote on such matter. NLACRC will require Ms. Colton to abstain from discussion
with, or involvement in the matter, and require the other board members to take all such actions,
including appropriate description of options, recommendations, analysis and ultimate decision

and vote.

The Regional Center and Jacquie Colton suggested Conflict Resolution Plan for this
conflict of interest is as follows:

1.

10.

11.

Ms. Colton will have no interaction as a board member with any matter that might
impact ASAP Home Health, and specifically she will recuse herself from any
vote on any matter that could impact ASAP Home Health.

Ms. Colton will, in every conceivable manner, cease interacting with the Board
on any matter that could conceivably impact ASAP Home Health.

Ms. Colton will not participate as a board member in the consideration,
preparation, review, presentation, formulation or approval of any report, plan,
opinion, recommendation or action regarding ASAP Home Health or any actions
creating policy or approaches that would impact ASAP Home Health and other
respite, personal assistance and daycare vendors.

Ms. Colton will not review or participate as a board member in any discussions,
recommendations, or decisions about Purchase of Service (POS) authorizations
for ASAP Home Health and other respite, personal assistance and daycare
vendors.

Ms. Colton will not review or in any way participate as a board member in the
preparation, consideration, or any follow-up related to Special Incident Reports
from or about ASAP Home Health and other respite, personal assistance and
daycare vendors.

Ms. Colton will not create, review, or in any way participate as a board member
in, any corrective action plans for ASAP Home Health and other respite, personal
assistance and daycare vendors.

Ms. Colton will not participate as a board member in any discussions,
recommendations, action, or resolution of any complaints pertaining to ASAP
Home Health and other respite, personal assistance and daycare vendors.

Ms. Colton will take no part as a board member in decisions regarding vendor
appeals, or fair hearings involving ASAP Home Health and other respite, personal
assistance and daycare vendors.

Ms. Colton will not as a board member access vendor files or other information
the regional center maintains about ASAP Home Health and respite, personal
assistance and daycare vendors, either in electronic or hard copy form.

Ms. Colton shall not participate as a board member in developing, creating, or
recommending any POS policies, or other policies, that might apply to ASAP
Home Health and other respite, personal assistance and daycare vendors. Instead,
these tasks will become the responsibility of the other board members.

Ms. Colton will not be involved as a board member in the negotiation,
discussion, obligation or commitment of NLACRC to a course of action

48



involving ASAP Home Health and other respite, personal assistance and daycare
vendors.

12. The NLACRC Board of Trustees will be informed about this Plan of Action, and
they will be informed of the need to ensure that Ms. Colton has no involvement
whatsoever in any action or business whatsoever involving or affecting ASAP Home
Health and other respite, personal assistance and daycare vendors.

13.  These restrictions only apply to ASAP Home Health and policies impacting other
respite, personal assistance and daycare vendors. The bulk of Ms. Colton’s
duties regarding a vast array of other Board issues and other vendors will remain
unchanged, unless the Board work would in any way impact ASAP Home Health.
This amounts to a reassignment of a small portion of her duties and will not reduce
the value and productivity that Jacquie Colton provides to the NLACRC Board.

14.  In the event the board member changes to a different respite agency during the
course of her term, each provision of this plan shall apply to with regard to the
new agency for the duration of the trustee's term on the board.

15.  NLACRC has received approval from its Board of Trustees regarding this
Conflict Resolution Plan.

Request Approval of Conflict Resolution Plan

For the reasons provided above, and in accordance with the Conflict Resolution Plan set forth
above, North Los Angeles County Regional Center hereby requests that DDS approve the
Conflict Resolution Plan in this matter.

Respectfully submitted,

By: Glmer
JACQUIE COLTON, NLACRC Board

Member Date: 28/02/25

By: » ”

luar Henandez (b 28, 2025 34 10 PSTY

Juan Hernandez, Board of Trustees President, NLACRC
Date: 28/02/25

By: st fuetrimen
Angela Pao-Johnson, Executive Director, NLACRC

49



State of California-Health and Human Services Agency EX hlb‘t A Department of Developmental Services

Reset Form

CONFLICT OF INTEREST REPORTING STATEMENT
DS 6016 (Rev. 08/2013)

The duties and responsibilities of your position with the regional center require you to file this Conflict of Interest
Reporting Statement. The purpose of this statement is to assist you, the regional center and the Department of
Developmental Services (DDS) to identify any relationships, positions or circumstances involving you which may create a
conflict of interest between your regional center duties and obligations, and any other financial interests and/or
relationships that you may have. In order to be comprehensive, this reporting statement requires you to provide

information with respect to your financial interests.

A “conflict of interest” generally exists if you have one or more personal, business, or financial interests, or refationships
that would cause a reasonable person with knowledge of the relevant facts to question your impartiality with respect to
your regional center duties. The specific circumstances and relationships which create a conflict of interest are set forth
in the California Code of Reguiations, title 17, sections 54500 through 54530. You should review these provisions to
understand the specific financial interests and relationships that can create a conflict of interest.

Please answer the following questions to the best of your knowledge. If you find a question requires further explanation
and/or there is not enough space to thoroughly answer the question, please attach as many additional sheets as
necessary, and refer to the question number next to your answer. If the regional center identifies a conflict invalving
you, it will be required to prepare a conflict resolution plan. Some relevant definitions have been provided in the

footnotes to assist you in responding to this statement.

You are required to file this Reporting Statement within 30 days of beginning your employment with the regional center
or from the date that you are appointed to the regional center board or advisory committee board. You are then
required to file an annual Reporting Statement by August 1st of every year while you remain employed with the regional
center or while you are a member of the regional center board or advisory committee board. You must also file a
Reporting Statement within 30 days of any change in your status that could result in a conflict of interest.
Circumstances that can constitute a change in your status that can require you to file an updated Reporting Statement

are described below in footnote one.

A. INFORMATION OF REPORTING INDIVIDUAL

N North Los Angeles County
Name: \JMM/w c%m Regional Center:  Regional Center
[

Regional Center Position/Title: Governing Board Member 0 Executive Director
{ vendor Advisory Committee sitting on Board U Employee

U Contractor O Agent O Consultant

New Appointment (date): 02/12/2025

Reporting Status: O Annual
Q Change of Status'

if a change in status, date and circumstance of change in status:

1. Please list your job title and describe your job duties at the regional center.

Member of the Board of Trustees

! Change of status includes a previously unreported activity that shouid have been reported, change in the circumstance of a previously
reported activity, change in financial interest, familial relationship, legal commitment, change in regional center position or duties, change in
regional center, or change to outside position or duties. See California Code of Regulations, title 17, sections 54531(d) and 54532(d).

50


Betsy Monahan
Highlight


@ Governing Board Member
0 Vendor Advisory on Baard
{1 Executive Director
U Employee/Other

2. Doyou or a family member? work for any entity or organization that is a regional center provider or contractor?
Zl/yyes Q3 no -- If yes, provide the name of the entity or organization and describe what services it provides for the
regional center or regional center consumers. |f the provider or contractor is a state or local governmental entity,
provide the specific name of the state or local governmental entity and describe your job duties at the state or local

governmental entity. ﬂg.ﬂ»‘f “+Home H—mH‘V)

3. Do you or a family member own or hold a position® in an entity or organization that is a regional center provider or
contractor? €1 yes [ no -- If yes, provide the name of the entity or organization, describe what services it
provides for the regional center or regional center consumeré gnd describe your or your family member’s financia!

interest. H%H’f"ﬁomc _H&rm Wg\ﬂdéé L_\/N r:gévpt‘[’e Vl‘DbLf&
e M go wsewt 2% an L PrnAL

4. Areyou a regional center advisory committee board member? O yes @ no -- If yes, are you a member of the
governing board or owner or employee of an entity or organization that provides services to the regicnal center or
regional center consumers? U yes [ no -- If yes, provide the name of the entity or organization and describe

what services it provides for the regional center or regional center consumers,

5. If you are a regional center advisory committee board member and answered yes to all the questions in Question 4
above, do any of the following apply to you: {a) are you an officer of the regional center board; (b) do you vote on
purchasing services frpm a regional center provider; or (c) do you vote on matters where you might have a financial

interest? (dvyes no -- If yes, please explain.

2 Family member includes your spouse, domestic partner, parents, stepparents, grandparents, siblings, stepsibliings, children, stepchildren,
grandchildren, parent-in-laws, brother-in-laws, sister-in-laws, son-in-laws and daughter~in-laws. See California Code of Regulations, titie 17,
sections 54505(f).

For purposes of this question, hold a position generally means that you or a family member is a director, officer, owner, partner, employee,
or shareholder of an entity or organization that is a regional center provider or contractor. For a specific description of positions that create a
conflict of interest in a regional center provider or contractor see the Califomia Code of Regulations, titie 17, sections 54520 and 54526.

Page 2 of 4

51



@ Governing Board Member
{3 Vendor Advisory on Board
0 Executive Director
O Employee/Other

6. Do any of the decisions you make when performing your job duties with the regional center have the potential to
financially benefit you or a family member®? [Note: Governing board members do not have to answer “yes” to this
question if the financial benefit would be available to regional center consumers or their families generally].

O vyes O nb - If yes, please explain,

7. Are you responsible for negotiating, making,® executing or approving contracts on behalf of the regional
center? yes U no--If yes, please explain.

As a NLACRC Board member, | will be responsible for approving contracts over $250,000.00.

8. Do you have a financial interest in any contract® with the regional center? O yes %-— If yes, did you negotiate,
make, execute or approve the contract on behalf of the regional center? Qyes [ no - If yes, please explain.

9. Do any of your family members have a financial interest in any contract with the regional center? U yes m
if yes, did you negotiate, make, execute or approve the contract on behalf of the regional center? vyes Uno

If yes, please explain.

Generally, a decision can financially benefit you or a family member if the decision can either directly or indirectly cause you or a family
member to receive a financial gain or avoid a financial ioss. For a specific description of the types of decisions that can result in a financial
geneﬁt to you or a family member see the California Code of Regulations, title 17, sections 54522 and 54527.

California Code of Reguiations, title 17, sections 54523(b)(2) and 54528(b){2) describes the types of conduct which constitute involvement in
ttshe making of a contract.

For purposes of questions 8 and 9, a financial interest in a contract generally means any direct or indirect interest in a contract that can
cause you or a family member to receive any sort of financial gain or avoid any sort of financial loss irrespective of the dollar amount.
California Code of Regulations, title 17, sections 54523 and 54528 define when financial interests in a contract will occur.

Page 3 of 4

52



d Governing Board Member
1 vendor Advisory on Board
{1 Executive Director

] Employee/Other

10. Do youEen\?luate employment applications or contract bids that are submitted by your family member(s)?
O yes no -- If yes, please explain.

11. Your job duties require you to act in the best interests of the regional center and regional center cansumers. Do you
have any circumstances or other financial interests not already discussed above that would prevent you from acting
in the best interests of the regional center or its consumers? QO vyes & no -- If yes, please explain.

B. ATTESTATION

| dMW"c CO(/i (print name) HEREBY CONFIRM that | have read and understand the

regional center’s Conflict of Interest Pclicy and that my responses to the questions in this Conflict of Interest Reparting
Statement are complete, true, and correct to the best of my information and belief. | agree that if | become aware of
any information that might indicate that this statement is not accurate or that | have not complied with the regional
center’s Conflict of Interest Policy or the applicable conflict of interest lfaws, | will notify the regional center's designated
individual immediately. | understand that knowingly providing false information on this Conflict of Interest Reporting
Statement shall subject me to a civil penalty in an amount up to fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) pursuant to Welfare and

Institutions Code section 4626.

Signatureﬁaw ng\’ Date 52//2‘/2&—~
y v ”*

_INTERNAL USE ONLY B
Date this Statement was received by Reviewer: o

The reporting individual H does U does not have a i present O potential conflict of interest

Signature of Designated Reviewer Date Review Completed

R-14-2025

— ——— — —

Page 4 of 4

53



Exhibit B North Los Angeles County Regional Center
Board of Trustees Policy

Board Member Responsibilities

The role of the Board of Trustees of the North Los Angeles County Regional Center
(NLACRC) is to make policy for the operation of the regional center. Policy is developed
through recommendations from board committees and the executive director with final
approval from the Board of Trustees.

Your tesponsibility as a member of the Board of Trustees of the NLACRC would include,
but not be limited to:

e Attendance, either virtual or in-person, at monthly Board of Trustees meetings, usually
held at 6:30 p.m. on the second Wednesday of each month at one of NLACRC’s three
offices. To be counted as “present”, one must attend the meeting for at least 1 hour of
the meeting’s duration.

e Membership and attendance on one (1) or more board committees.

e Visitation to at least one disability community organization, service provider
program/event or legislator/legislative event. Visits to NLACRC vendored programs
informs board members about the developmental disabilities service system. Programs
include a wide variety of residential and day programs as well as those providers who
deliver a specific service (e.g., school setting or transportation).

e Board participation and advocacy will be focused on systems issues; issues regarding an
individual consumer, family or program will be directed to the Executive Directot’s
Office.

e Identification of any potential conflict of interest as identified in Welfare and Institutions
Code, Sections 4626 and 4627 during the board member’s term on the board will be
reported to the administrative assistant to the board.

e Completion of the Conflict of Interest Statement annually and MediCal Provider
Enrollment Form as applicable due to the regional center’s funding and contract with the
State of California, Department of Developmental Services.

o Completion of a W-9 form by board members who seek reimbursement for childcare or
personal care services under the Board Member Support policy.

o Adhetence to the board’s Code of Conduct policy.

e Attendance at the annual board orientation for all newly seated board members.

e DParticipation in board-coordinated trainings and the annual board retreat.

[policy.bd.bdmbr.resps] Approved: 10-12-2022 Revised: 1-11-2023 Revised: 3-30-2023 Approved: 4-12-2023

54


Betsy Monahan
Highlight


Agenda Item Detail Sheet

ACTION X
ACTION/CONSENT
DISCUSSION

INFO ONLY

Date: March 12, 2025.
To: Board of Trustees
From: Vini Montague, Chief Financial Officer and Administrative Affairs Committee

Subject: Approval of Purchase of Services Startup Contracts, Brilliant Corners, PL.2188-999
Contract Amendment

BACKGROUND/GENERAL:

Each Community Placement Plan (“CPP”)/Community Resource Development Plan
(“CRDP”) Housing Agreement for Housing Development Organization (“HDO”) to
acquire and renovate a property to suit the needs of four (4) individuals with developmental
disabilities who require the services of an Enhanced Behavioral Supports Home (“EBSH”).

The Administrative Affairs Committee reviews and monitors contract obligations, reviews
and monitors the budget, reports expenditures to the Board, recommends policy in
personnel matters regarding hiring, salaries, retention and related issues, and recommends
policies affecting other areas of administrative services.

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s Administrative Affairs Committee
reviewed and discussed the Amendments to the CPP/CRDP Housing Agreement

REASON FOR CURRENT ITEM:

The purpose of the First Amendment was to establish milestones for renovation funding.

The purpose of the Second Amendment is per DDS approval, to increase the Maximum
Funding amount by $30,000.

After review at the February 20, 2025 meeting, the Administrative Affairs Committee
recommends the Approval of Purchase of Services Startup Contracts, Brilliant Corners,
PL2188-999 Contract Amendment provided in the meeting packet.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Total Amount of the Contract:
PL2188: CPP Funds
Original Maximum Funding Amount: $750,000.00
Acquisitions: $350,000.00
Renovation: $400,000.00
Revised Maximum Funding Amount: $984,541.00

55



Acquisition: $379,597.00
Renovation: $604,974.00
RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Board approve the Purchase of Services Startup Contract with Brilliant Corners,
PL2188-999 Contract Amendment as presented.

56



North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

Contract Summary and Board Resolution

No. Description Contract Summary

Second Amendment to CPP/CRDP Housing
1 Contract Overview: Agreement,

(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) | pyrchase of Services (POS)

Brilliant Corners

The Name of Vendor or Service Vendor Number: PL2188 (EBSH Ave D10)
Provider Service code: 999
Project # NLACRC-2223-4

Each Community Placement Plan (“CPP”)/
Community Resource Development Plan
(“CRDP”) Housing Agreement for Housing
Development Organization (“HDO”) to acquire and
renovate a property to suit the needs of four (4)
individuals with developmental disabilities who
require the services of an Enhanced Behavioral
Supports Home (“EBSH”):

3] The Purpose of the Contracts 1. PL2188 will be developed as an EBSH
with Delayed Egress for adult males: 2
ambulatory, 2 non-ambulatory.

The purpose of the First Amendment was to establish
milestones for renovation funding.

The purpose of the Second Amendment is, per DDS
approval, to increase the Maximum Funding Amount
by $30,000.

Thirty (30) year contract effective June 1, 2023
through the earlier of (1) the date HDO is no longer
The Contract Term owner of the Property or (2) May 31, 2053.

The termination or expiration of the Agreement shall
not affect the continued enforceability of the
documents intended to survive its termination.

PL2188: CPP Funds

Original Maximum Funding Amount: $750,000.00
Acquisition: $350,000.00

5. The Total Amount of the Contract Renovation: $400,000.00

Revised Maximum Funding Amount: $§984,571
Acquisition: $379,597
Renovation: $604,974

FY23 CPP/CRDP PL2188-999 Page 1 of 5

57



& e D)

Main 818-778-1900

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

Revised Maximum Funding Amount: $1,014,571
Acquisition: $379,597
Renovation: $634,974

The Total Proposed Number of
Consumers Served

EBSH will have a capacity of 4 consumers.

The Rate of Payment or Payment
Amount

Payment will be reimbursed to HDO based on
performance milestones or on other such terms as
required under DDS’s written guidelines.

Method or Process Utilized to
Award the Contract.

Brilliant Corners was awarded funding through a
Request for Proposal (“RFP”) process.

Adult EBSH RFP published by NLACRC on March
30, 2023 and closed on May 3, 2023. Applicant was
selected on May 26, 2023.

Method or Process Utilized to
Establish the Rate or the Payment
Amount

Funding was established in NLACRC’s FY2022-2023
CPP/CRDP approved by DDS on February 1, 2023
and March 9, 2023 and amended on April 19, 2023.
The acquisition of the property will be pursuant to
DDS CPP/CRDP Housing Guidelines for Fiscal Year
2017-2018, dated July 1, 2017 and DDS CPP/CRDP
Guidelines for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, dated
September 29, 2022.

PL2188: During property acquisition, which has since
completed escrow, on June 10, 2024, DDS approved
increase to funding of additional $30,000 FY2024-
2025 funds on January 22 and January 29, 2024.

The funds will be included in the next allocation.

10.

Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No
If Yes, provide explanation

The restrictive covenant on the property acquired by
Brilliant Corners for these projects effective
September 13, 2024 (PL2186) and (PL2187)do not
have a term limit on it.

Brilliant Corners is the current owner of the following
additional seven (7) permanent housing projects to
serve a maximum of thirty (30) consumers:
1. ARFPSHN: Babcock Avenue, Valley Village
(Commencement date January 1, 2013)
2. SRF: Kelvin Avenue, Woodland Hills
(Commencement date June 1, 2014)
3. SRF: Kelvin Avenue, Winnetka
(Commencement date April 4, 2013)

FY23 CPP/CRDP PL2186-999, PL2187-999

Page 2 of 5

58




North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

4. SRF: Mayall Street, Northridge
(Commencement date January 1, 2013)

5. EBSH: Wyse Road, Santa Clarita
(Commencement date June 1, 2020)

6. EBSH: W Avenue D10, Lancaster
(Commencement date Dec. 21, 2023)

7. ARFPSHN: San Jose Street,
(Commencement date September 13, 2024)

There is a restrictive covenant on each of the above
properties that established that the above properties
shall be maintained and be utilized solely for the
benefit of the individuals with developmental
disabilities for a term of 55 years (properties 1 - 4
above) and without term limit (properties 5 - 7).

The Funding Agreement (for above properties 1 - 4)
and the CPP/CRDP Housing Agreements (for above
properties 5 - 7) provide provisions, not included in
the Restrictive Covenants, that Brilliant Corners must
demonstrate, such as insurance requirements,
maintaining records, reporting requirements,
improvement requirements, management, repair, and
maintenance requirements, and legal remedies if

Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No
10. | If Yes, provide explanation (cont’d)

Brilliant Corners fails to comply with the Funding
Agreement/CPP/CRDP Housing Agreements or
Restrictive Covenants.

11 Additional reference:

ARFPSHN: Adult Residential Facilities for Persons with Special
Heath Care Needs (5-bed facility), as per WIC, Section 4684.50-
4684.75. Statute requires that ARFPSHN’s have operable
automatic fire sprinkler system that is approved by the State Fire
Marshal and that meets the national Fire Protection Association
(NFPA) and an alternative power source to operate all functions
of the facility for a minimum of six (6) hours in the event the
primary power source is interrupted. Provide services to
individuals with developmental disabilities who require 24-hour
care and supervision and who have complex medical and health
care service needs. Requires that the provider have licensed
professional personnel on staff, such as a RN and LVN that can
provide a variety of nursing interventions, including but not
limited to tracheostomy care and suctioning, special medication
regimes including injection and intravenous medications,
management of insulin-dependent diabetes, treatment for
wounds or pressure ulcers, pain management and palliative
care, etc.

EBSH: Enhanced Behavioral Supports Homes (EBSH) (4 bed

FY23 CPP/CRDP PL2186-999, PL2187-999

Page 3 of 5

59




North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

facility), as per WIC Section 4684.80-4684.87. Provide services to
individuals with developmental disabilities who require 24-hour
nonmedical care and who required enhanced behavioral
supports, staffing and supervision in a homelike setting to
support and address a consumer’s challenging behaviors, which
are beyond what is typically available in other community
facilities licensed as an adult residential facility or a group home.
Requires a minimum of 16 hours of emergency intervention
training for the service provider’s staff and

additional training for direct care staff to address the specialized
needs of the consumers.

SRF: Specialized Residential Facility-Habilitation (4-bed facility).
Provide services to individuals with developmental disabilities
who require 24-hour care and supervision and whose needs
cannot be appropriately met within the array of other
community living options available. Primary services include
personal care and supervision services, homemaker, chore,
attendant care, companion services, medication oversight to the
extent permitted under State law. Incidental services may
include therapeutic social and recreational

programming provided in a home-like environment, home
health care, physical therapy, occupational therapy, speech
therapy, medication administration, intermittent skilled nursing
services, and/or transportation as specified in the IPP. Provides
24-hour on-site response.

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs Committee
reviewed and discussed the above Amendments to the CPP/CRDP Housing Agreement
(“Amendments”) and is recommending an action of the Executive Committee on behalf of the
Board of Trustees to Approve the Contract.

February 20, 2025
Anna Hurst, Board Treasurer Date

FY23 CPP/CRDP PL2186-999, PL2187-999 Page 4 of 5

60



5;; 4 i @ North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

Contract Summary and Board Resolution

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Executive Committee on
behalf of the Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed the Second Amendment to the
CPP/CRDP Housing Agreement (“Amendment”, “Agreement”, or “Contract”) for Brilliant
Corners and passed the following resolution:

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the
Amendments between NLACRC and Brilliant Corners was reviewed and approved by
NLACRC’s Executive Committee on behalf of the Board of Trustees on March 12, 2025.

NLACRC’s Executive Committee on behalf of the Board of Trustees hereby authorized and
designates any officer of NLACRC to finalize, execute and deliver the Amendments on behalf of
NLACRGC, in such form as NLACRC’s legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and
conditions as such Officer may approve. The final terms of the Amendments shall be
conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Amendments by such Officer. For purposes of
this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief
Financial Officer, and Human Resources Director, and no one else.

Certification by Secretary: I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the
foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by
NLACRC’s Executive Committee on behalf of the Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in
full force and has not been revoked or changed in any way.

March 12, 2025
Sharmila Brunjes, Board Secretary Date

FY23 CPP/CRDP PL2186-999, PL2187-999 Page 5 of 5

61



Agenda Item Detail Sheet

ACTION X
ACTION/CONSENT
DISCUSSION -
INFO ONLY -

Date: March 12, 2025.

To: Board of Trustees

From: Anna Hurst, Chair Administrative Affairs Committee

Subject: Approval of Purchase of Setrvices Startup Contracts, CPP/CRDP Statrtup Projects,

Various Vendors

BACKGROUND/GENERAL:

Allocation, what the contract is for, what it will do — Housing Enhanced Behavioral
Supports Homes

The Administrative Affairs Committee reviews and monitors contract obligations, reviews
and monitors the budget, reports expenditures to the Board, recommends policy in
personnel matters regarding hiring, salaries, retention and related issues, and recommends
policies affecting other areas of administrative services.

REASON FOR CURRENT ITEM:

Department of Developmental Services (“DDS”) approval of Community Placement Plan
(“CPP”) / Community Developmental Resource Plan (“CRDP”) Start-Up Funds to develop
several projects during FY2024/2025 year as listed in the meeting packet.

After review at the February 20, 2025, meeting, the Administrative Affairs Committee
recommends the Approval of Purchase of Services Startup Contracts, CPP/CRDP Startup
Projects, Various Vendors provided in the meeting packet.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total approved funding is $2,850,000.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Board approve the Purchase of Setrvices Startup Contract with CPP/CRDP Startup
Projects, Various Vendors as presented.

62



North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

Contract Summary and Board Resolution

No. Description Contract Summary
) New Start-up Funding Development Agreements
1. Contract Overview: (CPP/CRDP) and CPP Housing Agreements,

(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) | pyrchase of Services (POS)

Department of Developmental Services (“DDS”)
approval of Community Placement Plan (“CPP”) /
Community Development Resource Plan
(“CRDP”) Start-Up Funds to develop the
following FY2024/2025 projects:

Service code: 999 (start-up development funds)

1. Enhanced Behavioral Supports Home
(EBSH) for Children)
PL2410: NLACRC-2425-1 (CRDP)

2. Enhanced Behavioral Supports Home
(EBSH) for Adults - Male)
PL2411: NLACRC-2425-2 (CPP)

3. Enhanced Behavioral Supports Home
(EBSH) for Adults — Male, delayed egress)
PL2412: NLACRC-2425-3 (CPP)
The Name of Vendor or Service

2. Provider 4. Adult Residential Facility for Persons with
Special Health Care Needs (ARFPSHN)
PL2413: NLACRC-2425-4 (CRDP)

5. Housing Development Organization
(HDO) to Acquire and Renovate
Specialized Residential Facility for
Substance Abuse Disorder Treatment
PL2414: NLACRC-2425-6 (CPP)

6. Specialized Residential Facility (SRF,
Level 7) for Adults with Forensic/Criminal
Involvement

PL2415: NLACRC-2425-7 (CPP)

7. Housing Development Organization
(HDO) to Construct an ADU (2-bed) to be
licensed as Specialized Residential Facility
(SRF, Level 7)

PL2416: NLACRC-2425-8 (CPP)

FY24 CPP/CRDP 999 Page 1 of 7

63



A:s & _:;@ North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

The Name of Vendor or Service
Provider (continued)

8. EBSH & CCH Service Provider Training
Program
PL2417: NLACRC-2425-9 (CRDP)

9. Behavioral Day Services
PL2418: NLACRC-2425-10(CRDP)

10. Substance Use Disorder Treatment
Program
PL2419: NLACRC-2425-11 (CRDP)

11. Specialized Residential Facility (SRF,
Level 7) for Adults with Nursing Needs
PL2420: NLACRC-2425-12 (CPP)

Nine Start-Up Funding Development Agreements

1. PL2410: EBSH for Children for 4-bed (3
ambulatory, 1 non-ambulatory)
Community Care Licensed EBSH with
delayed egress for male/female children
with intellectual disability and/or severe
behavioral needs needing community
placement or deflection from restrictive
settings.

2. PL2411: EBSH for Male Adults for 4-bed
(2 ambulatory, 2 non-ambulatory)
Community Care Licensed EBSH for adult
male individuals with intellectual disability
and/or severe behavioral needs needing
community placement or deflection from
Porterville Developmental Center, Canyon
Springs, IMDs, or other restrictive setting.

3. PL2412: EBSH for Male Adults for 4-bed
(2 ambulatory, 2 non-ambulatory)
Community Care Licensed EBSH with
delayed egress for adult male individuals
with intellectual disability and/or severe
behavioral needs needing community
placement or deflection from Porterville
Developmental Center, Canyon Springs,
IMDs, or other restrictive setting.

4. PL2413: ARFPSHN for 5-bed (non-
ambulatory) Community Care Licensed
ARF for medically fragile male/female
individuals with developmental disabilities
currently residing in a skilled nursing
facility (SNF) to provide 24-hour health

FY25 CPP/CRDP 999

Page 2 of 7

64




g _:;@ North Los Angeles County Regional Center

7
=
<

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

3| The Purpose of the Contracts

PL2413 (continued): care and intensive
support services to five (5) consumers in a
home-like setting.

PL2415: SRF for 4-bed (2 amb, 2 non-
amb) that will specialize in serving adult
individuals with developmental disabilities
and forensic/criminal involvement who
require a structured, licensed setting while
working towards transition to a less
restrictive residential setting.

PL2417: Development of a training
program on the regulations, training
requirements, and service delivery aspects
for qualified providers that have
demonstrated a commitment to providing
quality residential services with behavioral
supports (i.e., Level 4, SRF) that are
interested in expanding their services to
include EBSH & CCH homes.

PL2418: Community Care Licensed
Behavioral Day Program with community
integration training component will serve a
minimum of 30 individuals with significant
behavioral challenges and/or forensic
involvement, as well as co-occurring
mental health diagnoses.

PL2419: Outpatient Substance Use
Disorder (SUD) Treatment Program
licensed by the Department of Health Care
Services (DHCS) for individuals with
developmental disabilities and will include
evidence-based practices that include
relapse prevention, treatment, and
recovery.

PL2420: SRF for 4-bed (non-ambulatory)
that will specialize in serving adult
individuals who have nursing needs but do
not require 24-hour care and are currently
been placed in large, congregate skilled
nursing facilities due to resource
limitations.

FY25 CPP/CRDP 999

65

Page 3 of 7




A I ],, Eh

Main 818-778-1900

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

The Purpose of the Contracts
1 (continued)

Two CPP Housing Agreements

1. PL2414: Housing Development
Organization (HDO) to Acquire and
Renovate Specialized Residential Facility
4-bed (2 amb, 2 non-amb), with Delayed
Egress, to serve individuals with
developmental disabilities, substance abuse
and mental health service needs who
require a structured, licensed setting while
working towards transition to a less
restrictive residential setting.

2. PL2416: Housing Development
Organization (HDO) to Construct an
Accessory Dwelling Unit (2-bed) with
secured perimeter to be licensed as
Specialized Residential Facility on existing
property from FY2223 project to serve
individuals with developmental disabilities
and forensic/criminal involvement who
require a structured, licensed setting while
working towards transition to a less
restrictive residential setting.

4| The Contract Term

Start-up Funding Development Agreements: TBD
and no later than June 1, 2025. The term will end
no later than February 28, 2027.

CPP Housing Agreements:

Thirty (30) year contracts effective no later than
June 1, 2025 through the earlier of (1) the date
HDO is no longer owner of the Property or (2)
May 31, 2055. The termination or expiration of the
Agreement shall not affect the continued
enforceability of the documents intended to
survive its termination.

5. The Total Amount of the Contract

Total approved funding: $2,850,000:
1. Enhanced Behavioral Supports Home
(EBSH) for Children)
PL2410: NLACRC-2425-1: $250,000

2. Enhanced Behavioral Supports Home
(EBSH) for Adults - Male)
PL2411: NLACRC-2425-2: $250,000

3. Enhanced Behavioral Supports Home
(EBSH) for Adults — Male, delayed egress)
PL2412: NLACRC-2425-3: $250,000

FY25 CPP/CRDP 999

Page 4 of 7

66




A:» S R North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 ¢ Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

4. Adult Residential Facility for Persons with
Special Health Care Needs
PL2413: NLACRC-2425-4:
$250,000Housing Development
Organization (HDO) to Acquire and
Renovate Specialized Residential Facility
for Substance Abuse Disorder Treatment
PL2414: NLACRC-2425-6:
Acquisition: $300,000
Renovation: $350,000

5. Specialized Residential Facility (Level 7)
for Adults with Forensic/Criminal

Involvement
PL2415: NLACRC-2425-7: $200,000

The Total Amount of the Contract 6. Housing Development Organization
(continued) (HDO) to ADU (2-bsed) to be licensed as

Specialized Residential Facility (Level 7)

PL2416: NLACRC-2425-8: $500,000

8. EBSH & CCH Service Provider Training
Program
PL2417: NLACRC-2425-9: $50,000

9. Behavioral Day Services
PL2418: NLACRC-2425-10: $200,000

10. Substance Use Disorder Treatment

Program
PL2419: NLACRC-2425-11: $50,000

11. Specialized Residential Facility (Level 7)
for Adults with Nursing Needs
PL2420: NLACRC-2425-12: $200,000

EBSH for Children: 4

EBSH for Male Adults: 4

EBSH for Male Adults: 4

ARFPSHN: 5

HDO to Acquire and Renovate SRF: 4

SRF for Adults: 4

HDO for ADU Construction: 2

EBSH & CCH Provider Training: n/a

Behavioral Day Services: 30

0. Substance Use Disorder Treatment
Program: 30

11. DRF for Adults: 4

The Total Proposed Number of
Consumers Served

e A I Al ol e

Total: 91 Consumers

FY25 CPP/CRDP 999 Page 5 of 7

67



Av-z.' i &

Main 818-778-1900

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

¢ Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

The Rate of Payment or Payment

Payment will be reimbursed to Service Providers
based on performance milestones or on other such

Award the Contract.

Amount terms as required under DDS’s written guidelines.
Request for Proposal (“RFP”’) was published by
] Method or Process Utilized to NLACRC on November 18, 2024. The submission

deadline closes January 18, 2025 and selected
applicants will be determined by March 31, 2025.

Method or Process Utilized to
9. | Establish the Rate or the Payment
Amount

Funding was established in NLACRC’s FY2024-
2025 CPP/CRDP approved by DDS on November
7, 2024. The acquisition of the properties will be
pursuant to DDS CPP/CRDP Housing Guidelines
for Fiscal Year 2018-2019, dated July 16, 2018
and DDS CPP/CRDP Guidelines for Fiscal Year
2024-2025, dated June 25, 2024.

The funds will be included in the next allocation.

Exceptional Conditions or Terms: Yes/No
If Yes, provide explanation

10.

Funds must be encumbered by June 30, 2025.
Each contract is subject to changes recommended
by legal counsel and on such further terms and
conditions as any Officer of NLACRC may
approve.

Any change to award amounts per contract will be
approved by DDS.

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs Committee
reviewed and discussed the above Start-up Funding Development Agreements and CPP Housing
Agreements (“Contracts”) and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to Approve the

Contract.

February 20, 2025

Anna Hurst, Board Treasurer

FY25 CPP/CRDP 999

Date

Page 6 of 7

68




A 5 L ,% North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

Contract Summary and Board Resolution

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed
and discussed the Contract Summary for the above nine Start-up Funding Development
Agreements and two CPP Housing Agreements and passed the following resolution:

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees has reviewed and discussed the Contract Summary and hereby
authorizes any Officer of the NLACRC to execute the above nine Start-up Funding Development
Agreements and two CPP Housing Agreements (“Agreements” or “Contracts”) related to the
Department of Developmental Services (“DDS”) approved FY2025 CPP/CRDP Plan on March
12, 202S.

The NLACRC’s Board of Trustees hereby approves all such Contracts that are related to the
DDS-approved Start-Up Funding and Housing Agreements. The NLACRC’s Board of Trustees
hereby authorized and designates any officer of NLACRC to finalize, execute and deliver the
Contract on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as NLACRC’s legal counsel may advise, and on
such further terms and conditions as such Officer may approve. The final terms of the Contract
shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution of the Contract by such Officer. For purposes
of this authorization, an “Officer” means NLACRC’s Executive Director, Deputy Director, Chief
Financial Officer, and Human Resources Director, and no one else.

Certification by Secretary: I certify that: (1) I am the Secretary of the NLACRC; (2) the
foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly adopted by
NLACRC’s Board of Trustees; (3) the Resolution is in full force and has not been revoked or
changed in any way.

March 12, 2025
Sharmila Brunjes, Board Secretary Date

FY25 CPP/CRDP 999 Page 7 of 7

69



Agenda Item Detail Sheet

ACTION X
ACTION/CONSENT
DISCUSSION

INFO ONLY

Date: March 12, 2025.
To: Board of Trustees
From: Anna Hurst, Chair Administrative Affairs Committee

Subject: Operations Contract with ePlus Technology (Palo Alto Networks)

BACKGROUND/GENERAL:

NLACRC previously purchased Palo Alto XDR software for extended end point protection,
which is designed to protect and notify I'T of potential cybersecurity threats. This is a new
contract for the purpose of Palo Alto MDR Solution through ePlus Technology.

The Administrative Affairs Committee reviews and monitors contract obligations, reviews
and monitors the budget, reports expenditures to the Board, recommends policy in
personnel matters regarding hiring, salaries, retention and related issues, and recommends
policies affecting other areas of administrative services.

REASON FOR CURRENT ITEM:

The purpose of this new contract is to increase our cybersecurity posture.

On February 20, 2025, the Administrative Affairs Committee reviewed the Operations
Contract with ePlus Technology (Palo Alto Networks). The committee did not recommend
any changes to of the Operations Contract provided in the meeting packet and
recommended that it be brought to the Board of Trustees for approval.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Total Amount of the Contract $425,590.00.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Board approve the Operations Contract with ePlus Technology (Palo Alto
Networks) as presented.

70



North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 ¢ Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlactc.org

Contract Summary and Board Resolution

No. Description Contract Summary

Contract Overview: Operations
L. . New contract for the purchase of Palo Alto MDR

(New or Amendment) (POS or OPS) Solution through ePlus Technology

5 The Name of Vendor or Service ePlus Technology

Provider

NLACRC previously purchased Palo Alto XDR
software for extended end point protection, which is
designed to protect and notify IT of potential
cybersecurity threats. To increase our cybersecurity
posture, we are looking to add Palo Alto MDR
solution, which provides 24/7 monitoring of their
XDR solution and acts to mitigate potential threats
immediately. The service will allow 24/7 response
to any potential threats in addition to NLACRC’s IT
department.

3. | The Purpose of the Contract

4. | The Contract Term February 20, 2025 — February 28, 2028

The Total Amount of the Contract Maximum contract amount of $425,590.00

The Rate of Payment or Payment

Amount $141,863.34/year for 3-year term

NLACRC’s IT Director researched various
cybersecurity solutions prior to the selection of Palo
Alto XDR software. Palo Alto MDR service is
considered one of the leaders in the market and was
determined by the IT Director to be the optimal
cybersecurity solution. NLACRC is currently
Method or Process Utilized to utilizing Palo Alto firewalls apd XDR software to
7. Award the Contract. protegt our environment. Add'lng'the Palo Alto MDR
Solution to provide 24/7 monitoring of the XDR
solution would be more effective in comparison to
other vendor solutions because it works in
conjunction with the Palo Alto firewalls and XDR
software to protect and mitigate risks. Other vendor
solutions would not have the same level of control
on the environment.

Method or Process Utilized to
8. | Establish the Rate or the Payment Usual & Customary Rate
Amount

Exceptional Conditions or Terms:
9. | Yes/No No
If Yes, provide explanation

71


http://www.nlacrc.org/

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 * Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center’s (“NLACRC”) Administrative Affairs
Committee reviewed and discussed the above ePlus Technology Agreement for the purchase of
Palo Alto Networks MDR Solution and is recommending an action of the Board of Trustees to
approve the Agreement.

February 20, 2025
Anna Hurst, Board Treasurer Date

Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope 1 alleys since 1974

72


http://www.nlacrc.org/

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

Main 818-778-1900 ¢ Fax 818-756-6140 | 9200 Oakdale Avenue #100, Chatsworth, CA 91311 www.nlacrc.org

Contract Summary and Board Resolution

The North Los Angeles County Regional Center (“NLACRC”) Board of Trustees reviewed
and discussed the ePlus Technology Agreement for the purchase of Palo Alto Networks
MDR Solution.

RESOLVED THAT in compliance with NLACRC’s Board of Trustees Contract Policy, the
ePlus Technology Agreement (“Agreement”) between NLACRC and ePlus Technology
was reviewed and discussed by the NLACRC Board of Trustees on March 12, 2025.

The NLACRC Board of Trustees hereby authorizes and designates any Officer of
NLACRC to execute and deliver the Agreement on behalf of NLACRC, in such form as
NLACRC'’s legal counsel may advise, and on such further terms and conditions, as such
Officer may approve. The final terms of the Agreement shall be conclusively evidenced by
the execution of the Agreement by such Officer. For purposes of this authorization, an
“Officer” means NLACRC’s Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer, Deputy Director or
Human Resources Director, and no one else.

CERTIFICATION BY SECRETARY: | certify that: (i) | am the Secretary of the NLACRC,;
(i) the foregoing Resolution is a complete and accurate copy of the Resolution duly
adopted by NLACRC's Board of Trustees; iii) the Resolution is in full force and has not
been revoked or changed in any way.

March 12, 2025

Sharmila Brunjes, Board Secretary Date

Supporting people with developmental disabilities in the San Fernando, Santa Clarita, and Antelope 1 alleys since 1974

73


http://www.nlacrc.org/

Agenda Item Detail Sheet

ACTION X
ACTION/CONSENT
DISCUSSION

INFO ONLY

Date: March 12, 2025.
To: Board of Trustees

From: Betsy Monahan, Human Resources Director and Executive Committee

Subject: Approval of Reviewed NLACRC Whistleblower Policy

BACKGROUND/GENERAL:

The Executive Committee’s purpose is to respond to matters of an urgent nature, which call
for immediate action or commitment prior to the next scheduled meeting of the Board with
all business conducted by the Executive Committee reported at the next Board meeting. The
Executive Committee has the power and authority to oversee the performance evaluation
and negotiate contracts with the Executive Director of the Regional Center.

At its meeting on February 27, 2025, the Executive Committee reviewed the Legal Reviewed
NLACRC Whistleblower Policy provided in the meeting packet.

REASON FOR CURRENT ITEM/DICUSSION:

After review and discussion of the NLACRC Whistleblower Policy, the Executive
Committee recommends the Board approve the revisions made to the NLACRC
Whistleblower Policy. These changes are indicated with the redlined draft of the policy, and
the proposed changes are included in the clean draft of the NLACRC Whistleblower Policy
included in the meeting packet.

FISCAL IMPACT (if any):

None.

RECOMMENDATION:

For the Board to approve the updated NLACRC’s Whistleblower Policy as presented.

74



WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC
EMPLOYEES AND BOARD
MEMBERS

POLICY & PROCEDURE

Effective Date: Version No.: Revision Date:
Category: ORG-MISC August 29, 2009 August-15;
67 2024November 21

NLACRC WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY FOR REPORTS BY EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS
1. General Policy

This Whistleblower Policy (“Policy”) is adopted to comply with the Department of Developmental
Services (“DDS”) Regional Center/Employee and Board Member Complaint Process Filing and
Contact Information Guidelines for Whistleblower Complaints.

For purposes of this Policy, a whistleblower is a regional center employee or a member of the
Board of Trustees (which also may be referred to as the trustee(s) or Board member(s)), who in
good faith?® reports, raises a concern, asks questions, or makes a complaint about any “improper
regional center activity” and/or “improper vendor/contractor activity,” as defined in this Policy
below, committed by a regional center, an employee, a trustee, or a vendor/contractor.

Our continued success relies on maintaining a work environment that promotes integrity and
trust. We seek to earn and maintain the trust of our community, employees, consumers, family
members, vendors and regulators. To that end, we strive to maintain the highest standards of
ethical and legally compliant behavior in all of our activities, avoiding actions that could lead to
even the appearance of violations of the law or improper regional center activity or improper
vendor/contractor activity as defined in this Policy below.

Whistleblower complaints, for purposes of this Policy, are defined as the reporting in good faith
(—defined below at section 5.1) of an “improper regional center activity” or “improper
vendor/contractor activity.”

An “improper regional center activity” means an activity by a regional center, or an employee,
officer or board member of a regional center, in the conduct of regional center business, that

1 For purposes of this policy, reporting in “good faith” means making a genuine attempt to provide honest and
accurate information about violations of the law, improper regional center activity or vendor/contract activity, as
defined by this Policy, even if the information proves to be unsubstantiated or mistaken.

75



WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS sz ﬁ%ﬁef

Category: ORG-MISC

is a violation of state or federal law or regulation; violation of contract provisions; fraud or
fiscal malfeasance; misuse of governmental property or constitutes gross misconduct,
incompetency, or inefficiency.

An “improper vendor/contractor activity” means an activity by a vendor/contractor, or an
employee, officer, or board member of a vendor/contractor, in the provision of State funded
services, that is a violation of a state or federal law or regulation; violation of contract
provisions; fraud or fiscal malfeasance; misuse of government property; or constitutes gross
misconduct, incompetency, or inefficiency.

This Policy protects employees and Board trustees from any form of retaliation for the good faith
reporting of an improper activity as defined above. In short, no adverse action will be taken
against the person filing the complaint simply because a complaint has been filed in good faith.

2. Individual Responsibility

Legal compliance and ethical conduct are everyone’s responsibility. All employees of NLACRC
(i.e., NLACRC employees based in the San Fernando Valley, Antelope Valley, and Santa Clarita
Valley offices) as well as NLACRC board trustees, no matter where they may be working from,
have an obligation to comply with this policy and to report any suspected or actual violation of
the law and any improper conduct as defined above — by any employee, board member or
vendor/contractor of a regional center. rThere is a separate policy for whistleblower reports [ADD
TITLE RE: WB for vendors, contractors and others if we want to continue second policy]. l

3. Additional Responsibilities of Leaders

Leadership, managers and others who supervise employees have additional responsibilities,
listed below. One of the most important responsibilities of Leaders is taking action if they
receive a report or observe or experience conduct that violates this Policy.

It is especially important for leaders, managers and those who supervise employees to
understand that while employees may make a report under this policy in writing, a written
complaint or otherwise specific format is not required. Employees making reports pursuant to
this Policy may do so informally and the following should be considered as making a report
upon which the leader must act: raising concern(s), asking question(s), or complaining about
violations of the law, Company policy, or improper regional center activity or improper
vendor/contractor activity as defined in this Policy. Leaders may also observe, or experience,

76

Commented [GLS1]: Does NLACRC want to maintain two
policies? As noted above, we can combine or have two. Not sure
if there was a reason NLACRC chose two.




WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS Sz 5November

21,2024
Category: ORG-MISC

conduct that may be in violation of this Policy. In such instances, leaders must act by reporting

it to the appropriate Compliance Officer or Human Resources Director listed in 4a below.

Not only are leadership, managers and others who supervise employees expected to comply

with this Policy, but they are also expected to:

Lead by example. Exemplify high standards of ethical business conduct in both spoken

words and actions. Your team members will follow your lead.

Be a resource for others. Discuss this Policy with employees and others as appropriate

to reinforce the importance of ethical behavior and compliance.

Promote respect and compliance. Create an environment in which employees are

comfortable asking questions or raising issues.

Respond quickly and effectively. When a concern is brought to your attention, make

sure that it is treated seriously and with due respect for everyone involved.

Support those who raise a concern. Never take or allow retaliatory action against

4.1

someone for reporting a concern or suspected violation in good faith.

Procedures For Making a Report

All employees and Board Members have a responsibility to report, in good faith, any
violations or suspected improper activity as defined in this Policy as well as any suspected
retaliation, any of NLACRC's internal policies or procedures, or any laws or regulations.

We encourage employees to speak up with concerns without fear of retaliation.

You may raise any questions or report any suspected or actual violations of law, improper
activity as defined in this Policy, or other internal policies or procedures, including doing
so anonymously, via:

(1) The Compliance Officer (who is the Human Resources Director), or Human Resources
as listed below;

(2) Executive Director

77




WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS sz 5November

21,2024
Category: ORG-MISC

a.

(3) DDS;
(4) Board of Trustees or Executive Committee

North Los Angeles County Regional Center

An individual who wishes to file a complaint with Human Resources may contact:

b.

Human Resources Director
Phone: (818) 756-6125

Fax: (818) 756-6440

Email: whistleblower@nlacrc.org

9200 Oakdale Avenue, Suite 100
Chatsworth, CA 91311

Board of Trustees, Executive Committee or Specific Officer of the Board

To make a complaint to the Board of Trustees, the Board’s Executive Committee, or to a specific
officer of the board (e.g., President, Immediate Past President, 1st Vice-President, 2nd Vice
President, Treasurer, or Secretary), the contact information is as follows:

C.

Board of Trustees or Board of Trustees’ Executive Committee
(Please specify what officer of the Board of Trustees you wish to
send your complaint to, if applicable.)

Phone: (818) 756-6118

Fax: (818) 756-6140

Email: boardsupport@nlacrc.org

9200 Oakdale Ave, Suite 100
Chatsworth, CA 91311

Department of Developmental Services (DDS)

A Whistleblower complaint may be filed with DDS by contacting:

Office of Community Appeals and Resolutions
Phone: (833) 538-3723

Fax: (916) 654- 3641

Email: Appeals@dds.ca.gov

78



mailto:Appeals@dds.ca.gov

WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS sz 5November

21,2024
Category: ORG-MISC

1215 O Street, MS 8-20
Sacramento, CA 95814

This process is only for the Regional Center or Vendor/Contractor Whistleblower complaints
as described in this document. DDS has a variety of complaint and appeal processes available
to vendors/contractors, agencies, facilities, parents, and consumers. These include Consumer
Rights Complaints; Early Start Complaints, Due Process Requests, and Mediation Conference
Requests; Lanterman Act Fair Hearing Requests; Title 17 Complaints; Citizen Complaints and
Comments.

See http://www.dds.ca.gov/Complaints/Home.cfm for list

Each of these complaint and appeal processes has separate and distinct procedures for
resolution.

4.2

The Compliance Officer or the Board of Trustees will notify the sender to acknowledge

4.23

receipt of the complaint and provide an assigned investigation case number within five

(5) business days.

We will need a clear and concise statement of the alleged improper activity and any
evidence you have to support the allegation. Complaints under this Policy may be written
or oral, but in either form should provide as much detail as possible about the conduct
being reported. While NLACRC prefers for complaints to be made in writing for
administrative reasons, there is no required complaint form. If the Compliance Officer,
supervisor _and/or manager receives or has only verbal information regarding the
reported concern under this Policy, all details of the report must be reported to NLACRC's
whistleblower hotline contact information, discussed above in section 4a.-.

If you do not provide a name or other information (witnesses or documents) that clearly
identifies the person you are alleging has engaged in improper activity, and the regional
center or vendor/contractor where that person works or is a board member, we may
not have sufficient information to investigate. Copies of documents, rather than
originals, should be submitted, as they cannot be returned.

Although complaints may be filed anonymously (see section 4.1), if insufficient
information is provided and we have no means to contact you, we may not be able to
investigate your allegation.

79



http://www.dds.ca.gov/Complaints/Home.cfm

WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS sz 5November

21,2024
Category: ORG-MISC

4.34

4.5

It is extremely difficult and often impossible to investigate if insufficient information is
provided and we have no means to contact you to gather facts. In such cases, NLACRC
may not be able to effectively evaluate or investigate the allegations absent sufficient
detail.

NLACRC encourages employees and board members to notify the Compliance Officer in
good faith when they have reason to believe that any “improper regional center activity”
and/or “improper vendor/contractor activity,” as those terms are defined in part 1 of this
policy, has occurred.

NLACRC requires managers and supervisors to report information they have that provides
reason to believe activity in violation of this Policy has occurred to the Compliance Officer
or appropriate alternate reporting option.

The Center may seek an appropriate impartial party, such as arbitrator, organizational

5.1

ombudsman, investigator, mediator or the Center’s outside legal counsel, to investigate
suspected improper activity and to make recommendations to the Center. The Center will
inform the Board’s Executive Committee of recommendations by the appropriate
impartial party, including appropriate corrective action, during scheduled Executive
Committee meetings, no less than annually and when stipulated, on a monthly basis.

No Retaliation

NLACRC strictly prohibits retaliation against any person who reports, in good faith, a
suspected or actual violation of law, this policy or other regional center policies and
procedures. Reporting “in good faith” means making a genuine attempt to provide
honest and accurate information, even if the information proves to be unsubstantiated
or mistaken.

NLACRC also prohibits retaliation because of an individual’s participation in an Agency
investigation. Anyone who engages in retaliatory conduct will be subject to disciplinary
action, including termination of employment or engagement.

Bottom Line: There is no room in our culture for retribution against anyone who acts in
good faith when they ask questions, raise concerns, make a complaint, or participate in

an investigation.

80




WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS sz i%fbef

Category: ORG-MISC

NLACRC takes reports of violations of law, this Policy, or Agency policy very seriously.
Employees who falsify such reports or who provide false information in an Agency
investigation will be subject to corrective action, up to and including termination of
employment or engagement.

There is an expectation and entitlement to an environment free of retaliation for
bringing forward good faith complaints under this Policy, as well as for protected
complaints protected under applicable federal, state and local law.

If you believe you have experienced retaliation for making a good faith complaint under
this Policy, you should report the matter immediately, and any such report will be
addressed_as a separate incident of “improper regional center activity” to be
investigated under the report and investigation process previously discussed above.

5.2 The Regional Center will provide to DDS every 30 days, a report of whistleblower
complaints received under this Policy. This report shall contain, at a minimum, the
following information for each complaint submitted: (1) Date complaint received; (2)
Complainant type, if known, for whistleblower complaints (e.g., regional center staff,
service provider, community member, etc.); (3) Date acknowledgement of receipt was
sent to complainant; (4) Nature of complaint; (5) Details of investigation; (6) Results of
investigation; and (7) Corrective action taken, if applicable.

6. Confidentiality

NLACRC will do everything possible to maintain the confidentiality of a complainant making a
whistleblower complaint if the complainant requests confidentiality without impeding the
investigation. However, in the rare circumstances, determined on a case by case basis, where
NLACRC is unable to maintain confidentiality due to its statutory responsibilities (for example,
including ensuring the health and safety of consumers and regional center contract
compliance; need to conduct a good faith and thorough investigation; or to comply with other
laws and obligations to investigate, address and correct alleged improper activity), NLACRC will
attempt to inform the complainant of its need to disclose certain information prior to releasing
identifying information. Additionally, the identity of the complainant may be revealed to
appropriate law enforcement agencies conducting a criminal investigation.

81



WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS sz i%fbef

Category: ORG-MISC

Notwithstanding the required language of the DDS in this Policy, nothing in this Policy should be
interpreted as, and the NLRCRC will not apply or enforce the Policy to interfere with, restrain or
coerce employees in the exercise of their rights under Section 7 of the National Labor Relations
Act, which guarantees covered individuals the right to self-organization, to form, join, or assist
labor organizations, to bargain collectively through representatives of their own choosing, and
to engage in other concerted activities for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual
aid or protection, as well as the right to refrain from any or all such activities.

7. State Directive

This Policy is Consistent with the State’s Directive Entitled “Department of Developmental
Services Whistleblower Complaint Process,” dated July 28, 2010, and does all of the following:

e Allows for multiple employees within the Regional Center to be available to accept
complaints.

e Includes the required process to access the Board of Directors for the purpose of filing
complaints.

e Ensures that the Policy clearly indicates that the regional center will not retaliate
against any complainant.

e Ensures that a process is in place to investigate and take appropriate action on
complaints, including complaints of retaliation.

e Addresses complainant confidentiality, consistent with the State’s Whistleblower
Policy, including consumer health and safety.

8. Notification and Dissemination of Policy

NLACRC will provide for the notification of employees and board members by either hard copy
or electronic/digital distribution, of the existence of both NLACRC’s and DDS’s Whistleblower
policies and requirement for posting and maintaining this Policy prominently on NLACRC’s
website within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Policy, and annually thereafter. In
addition, NLACRC will ensure that the regional center’s and DDS’s Whistleblower Policies are

82



WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS sz 5November

21,2024
Category: ORG-MISC

posted prominently on the regional center’s website within thirty (30) days after being
adopted.

NLACRC also will:

Inform, as part of eligibility determination and vendorization processes, all new
clients/families and new vendors of the regional center’s and the DDS’s Whistleblower
policies.

Review this Policy and provide, at minimum, annual training to all board members
regarding the regional center’s governing board’s approved Whistleblower Policy to
include, but not be limited to the board’s role in implementing the policy.

Submit to DDS by December 15 of each year, a proposed comprehensive board training
plan for the next calendar year with training topics to include, at a minimum a review
of board governance (e.g., board members’ role and responsibilities), conflict of interest
and whistleblower policies, and linguistic and cultural competency.

Utilize other communication mechanisms in use at NLACRC to provide notification to
employees, board members, consumers/families, and vendor community of the
existence of both NALCRC’s and DDS’s Whistleblower complaint process and the right
to make reports of improper activity to the DDS.

83




WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
August

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS sz ﬁ%ﬂ)ef

Category: ORG-MISC

ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND AGREEMENT TO COMPLY

| acknowledge that | have read and understand this Policy. | understand that compliance with this
Policy is a condition of employment and also a condition of Board Membership at NLACRC.

10

84



WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC
EMPLOYEES AND BOARD
MEMBERS

POLICY & PROCEDURE

Effective Date: Version No.: Revision Date:
Category: ORG-MISC August 29, 2009 November 21, 2024
7

NLACRC WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY FOR REPORTS BY EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS
1. General Policy

This Whistleblower Policy (“Policy”) is adopted to comply with the Department of Developmental
Services (“DDS”) Regional Center/Employee and Board Member Complaint Process Filing and
Contact Information Guidelines for Whistleblower Complaints.

For purposes of this Policy, a whistleblower is a regional center employee or a member of the
Board of Trustees (which also may be referred to as the trustee(s) or Board member(s)), who in
good faith?® reports, raises a concern, asks questions, or makes a complaint about any “improper
regional center activity” and/or “improper vendor/contractor activity,” as defined in this Policy
below, committed by a regional center, an employee, a trustee, or a vendor/contractor.

Our continued success relies on maintaining a work environment that promotes integrity and
trust. We seek to earn and maintain the trust of our community, employees, consumers, family
members, vendors and regulators. To that end, we strive to maintain the highest standards of
ethical and legally compliant behavior in all of our activities, avoiding actions that could lead to
even the appearance of violations of the law or improper regional center activity or improper
vendor/contractor activity as defined in this Policy below.

Whistleblower complaints, for purposes of this Policy, are defined as the reporting in good faith
(defined below at section 5.1) of an “improper regional center activity” or “improper
vendor/contractor activity.”

An “improper regional center activity” means an activity by a regional center, or an employee,
officer or board member of a regional center, in the conduct of regional center business, that
is a violation of state or federal law or regulation; violation of contract provisions; fraud or

1 For purposes of this policy, reporting in “good faith” means making a genuine attempt to provide honest and
accurate information about violations of the law, improper regional center activity or vendor/contract activity, as
defined by this Policy, even if the information proves to be unsubstantiated or mistaken.

1

85



WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
November 21,

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS 7 2024

Category: ORG-MISC

fiscal malfeasance; misuse of governmental property or constitutes gross misconduct,
incompetency, or inefficiency.

An “improper vendor/contractor activity” means an activity by a vendor/contractor, or an
employee, officer, or board member of a vendor/contractor, in the provision of State funded
services, that is a violation of a state or federal law or regulation; violation of contract
provisions; fraud or fiscal malfeasance; misuse of government property; or constitutes gross
misconduct, incompetency, or inefficiency.

This Policy protects employees and Board trustees from any form of retaliation for the good faith
reporting of an improper activity as defined above. In short, no adverse action will be taken
against the person filing the complaint simply because a complaint has been filed in good faith.

2. Individual Responsibility

Legal compliance and ethical conduct are everyone’s responsibility. All employees of NLACRC
(i.e., NLACRC employees based in the San Fernando Valley, Antelope Valley, and Santa Clarita
Valley offices) as well as NLACRC board trustees, no matter where they may be working from,
have an obligation to comply with this policy and to report any suspected or actual violation of
the law and any improper conduct as defined above — by any employee, board member or
vendor/contractor of a regional center. ’There is a separate policy for whistleblower reports [ADD
TITLE RE: WB for vendors, contractors and others if we want to continue second policy]. l

3. Additional Responsibilities of Leaders

Leadership, managers and others who supervise employees have additional responsibilities,
listed below. One of the most important responsibilities of Leaders is taking action if they
receive a report or observe or experience conduct that violates this Policy.

It is especially important for leaders, managers and those who supervise employees to
understand that while employees may make a report under this policy in writing, a written
complaint or otherwise specific format is not required. Employees making reports pursuant to
this Policy may do so informally and the following should be considered as making a report
upon which the leader must act: raising concern(s), asking question(s), or complaining about
violations of the law, Company policy, or improper regional center activity or improper
vendor/contractor activity as defined in this Policy. Leaders may also observe, or experience,
conduct that may be in violation of this Policy. In such instances, leaders must act by reporting
it to the appropriate Compliance Officer or Human Resources Director listed in 4a below.

2

86

Commented [GLS1]: Does NLACRC want to maintain two
policies? As noted above, we can combine or have two. Not sure
if there was a reason NLACRC chose two.




WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No.

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS !

Category: ORG-MISC

Revision Date:
November 21,
2024

Not only are leadership, managers and others who supervise employees expected to comply
with this Policy, but they are also expected to:

4.1

Lead by example. Exemplify high standards of ethical business conduct in both spoken
words and actions. Your team members will follow your lead.

Be a resource for others. Discuss this Policy with employees and others as appropriate

to reinforce the importance of ethical behavior and compliance.

Promote respect and compliance. Create an environment in which employees are

comfortable asking questions or raising issues.

Respond quickly and effectively. When a concern is brought to your attention, make
sure that it is treated seriously and with due respect for everyone involved.

Support those who raise a concern. Never take or allow retaliatory action against

someone for reporting a concern or suspected violation in good faith.

Procedures For Making a Report

All employees and Board Members have a responsibility to report, in good faith, any
violations or suspected improper activity as defined in this Policy as well as any suspected
retaliation, any of NLACRC's internal policies or procedures, or any laws or regulations.

We encourage employees to speak up with concerns without fear of retaliation.

You may raise any questions or report any suspected or actual violations of law, improper

activity as defined in this Policy, or other internal policies or procedures, including doing

so anonymously, via:

(1) The Compliance Officer (who is the Human Resources Director), or Human Resources

as listed below;
(2) Executive Director

(3) DDS;

87




WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
November 21,

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS 7 2024

Category: ORG-MISC

(4) Board of Trustees or Executive Committee
a. North Los Angeles County Regional Center
An individual who wishes to file a complaint with Human Resources may contact:

e Human Resources Director
Phone: (818) 756-6125
Fax: (818) 756-6440
Email: whistleblower@nlacrc.org

9200 Oakdale Avenue, Suite 100
Chatsworth, CA 91311

b. Board of Trustees, Executive Committee or Specific Officer of the Board

To make a complaint to the Board of Trustees, the Board’s Executive Committee, or to a specific
officer of the board (e.g., President, Immediate Past President, 1st Vice-President, 2nd Vice
President, Treasurer, or Secretary), the contact information is as follows:

e Board of Trustees or Board of Trustees’ Executive Committee
(Please specify what officer of the Board of Trustees you wish to
send your complaint to, if applicable.)

Phone: (818) 756-6118
Fax: (818) 756-6140
Email: boardsupport@nlacrc.org

9200 Oakdale Ave, Suite 100
Chatsworth, CA 91311
c. Department of Developmental Services (DDS)

A Whistleblower complaint may be filed with DDS by contacting:

. Office of Community Appeals and Resolutions
Phone: (833) 538-3723
Fax: (916) 654- 3641
Email: Appeals@dds.ca.gov

1215 O Street, MS 8-20

88



mailto:Appeals@dds.ca.gov

WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
November 21,

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS 7 2024

Category: ORG-MISC

Sacramento, CA 95814

This process is only for the Regional Center or Vendor/Contractor Whistleblower complaints
as described in this document. DDS has a variety of complaint and appeal processes available
to vendors/contractors, agencies, facilities, parents, and consumers. These include Consumer
Rights Complaints; Early Start Complaints, Due Process Requests, and Mediation Conference
Requests; Lanterman Act Fair Hearing Requests; Title 17 Complaints; Citizen Complaints and
Comments.

See http://www.dds.ca.gov/Complaints/Home.cfm for list

Each of these complaint and appeal processes has separate and distinct procedures for
resolution.

4.2 The Compliance Officer or the Board of Trustees will notify the sender to acknowledge
receipt of the complaint and provide an assigned investigation case number within five
(5) business days.

4.3 We will need a clear and concise statement of the alleged improper activity and any
evidence you have to support the allegation. Complaints under this Policy may be written
or oral, but in either form should provide as much detail as possible about the conduct
being reported. While NLACRC prefers for complaints to be made in writing for
administrative reasons, there is no required complaint form. If the Compliance Officer,
supervisor and/or manager receives or has only verbal information regarding the
reported concern under this Policy, all details of the report must be reported to NLACRC's
whistleblower hotline contact information, discussed above in section 4a..

If you do not provide a name or other information (witnesses or documents) that clearly
identifies the person you are alleging has engaged in improper activity, and the regional
center or vendor/contractor where that person works or is a board member, we may
not have sufficient information to investigate. Copies of documents, rather than
originals, should be submitted, as they cannot be returned.

Although complaints may be filed anonymously (see section 4.1), if insufficient
information is provided and we have no means to contact you, we may not be able to
investigate your allegation.

It is extremely difficult and often impossible to investigate if insufficient information is
provided and we have no means to contact you to gather facts. In such cases, NLACRC
5

89


http://www.dds.ca.gov/Complaints/Home.cfm

WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
November 21,

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS 7 2024

Category: ORG-MISC

4.4

4.5

5.1

may not be able to effectively evaluate or investigate the allegations absent sufficient
detail.

NLACRC encourages employees and board members to notify the Compliance Officer in
good faith when they have reason to believe that any “improper regional center activity”
and/or “improper vendor/contractor activity,” as those terms are defined in part 1 of this
policy, has occurred.

NLACRC requires managers and supervisors to report information they have that provides
reason to believe activity in violation of this Policy has occurred to the Compliance Officer
or appropriate alternate reporting option.

The Center may seek an appropriate impartial party, such as arbitrator, organizational
ombudsman, investigator, mediator or the Center’s outside legal counsel, to investigate
suspected improper activity and to make recommendations to the Center. The Center will
inform the Board’s Executive Committee of recommendations by the appropriate
impartial party, including appropriate corrective action, during scheduled Executive
Committee meetings, no less than annually and when stipulated, on a monthly basis.

No Retaliation

NLACRC strictly prohibits retaliation against any person who reports, in good faith, a
suspected or actual violation of law, this policy or other regional center policies and
procedures. Reporting “in good faith” means making a genuine attempt to provide
honest and accurate information, even if the information proves to be unsubstantiated
or mistaken.

NLACRC also prohibits retaliation because of an individual’s participation in an Agency
investigation. Anyone who engages in retaliatory conduct will be subject to disciplinary
action, including termination of employment or engagement.

Bottom Line: There is no room in our culture for retribution against anyone who acts in
good faith when they ask questions, raise concerns, make a complaint, or participate in

an investigation.

NLACRC takes reports of violations of law, this Policy, or Agency policy very seriously.
Employees who falsify such reports or who provide false information in an Agency

90




WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
November 21,

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS 7 2024

Category: ORG-MISC

investigation will be subject to corrective action, up to and including termination of
employment or engagement.

There is an expectation and entitlement to an environment free of retaliation for
bringing forward good faith complaints under this Policy, as well as for protected
complaints protected under applicable federal, state and local law.

If you believe you have experienced retaliation for making a good faith complaint under
this Policy, you should report the matter immediately, and any such report will be
addressed as a separate incident of “improper regional center activity” to be
investigated under the report and investigation process previously discussed above.

5.2 The Regional Center will provide to DDS every 30 days, a report of whistleblower
complaints received under this Policy. This report shall contain, at a minimum, the
following information for each complaint submitted: (1) Date complaint received; (2)
Complainant type, if known, for whistleblower complaints (e.g., regional center staff,
service provider, community member, etc.); (3) Date acknowledgement of receipt was
sent to complainant; (4) Nature of complaint; (5) Details of investigation; (6) Results of
investigation; and (7) Corrective action taken, if applicable.

6. Confidentiality

NLACRC will do everything possible to maintain the confidentiality of a complainant making a
whistleblower complaint if the complainant requests confidentiality without impeding the
investigation. However, in the rare circumstances, determined on a case by case basis, where
NLACRC is unable to maintain confidentiality due to its statutory responsibilities (for example,
including ensuring the health and safety of consumers and regional center contract
compliance; need to conduct a good faith and thorough investigation; or to comply with other
laws and obligations to investigate, address and correct alleged improper activity), NLACRC will
attempt to inform the complainant of its need to disclose certain information prior to releasing
identifying information. Additionally, the identity of the complainant may be revealed to
appropriate law enforcement agencies conducting a criminal investigation.

91



WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
November 21,

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS 7 2024

Category: ORG-MISC

Notwithstanding the required language of the DDS in this Policy, nothing in this Policy should be
interpreted as, and the NLRCRC will not apply or enforce the Policy to interfere with, restrain or
coerce employees in the exercise of their rights under Section 7 of the National Labor Relations
Act, which guarantees covered individuals the right to self-organization, to form, join, or assist
labor organizations, to bargain collectively through representatives of their own choosing, and
to engage in other concerted activities for the purpose of collective bargaining or other mutual
aid or protection, as well as the right to refrain from any or all such activities.

7. State Directive

This Policy is Consistent with the State’s Directive Entitled “Department of Developmental
Services Whistleblower Complaint Process,” dated July 28, 2010, and does all of the following:

e Allows for multiple employees within the Regional Center to be available to accept
complaints.

e Includes the required process to access the Board of Directors for the purpose of filing
complaints.

e Ensures that the Policy clearly indicates that the regional center will not retaliate
against any complainant.

e Ensures that a process is in place to investigate and take appropriate action on
complaints, including complaints of retaliation.

e Addresses complainant confidentiality, consistent with the State’s Whistleblower
Policy, including consumer health and safety.

8. Notification and Dissemination of Policy

NLACRC will provide for the notification of employees and board members by either hard copy
or electronic/digital distribution, of the existence of both NLACRC’s and DDS’s Whistleblower
policies and requirement for posting and maintaining this Policy prominently on NLACRC’s
website within thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Policy, and annually thereafter. In
addition, NLACRC will ensure that the regional center’s and DDS’s Whistleblower Policies are

92



WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC Version No. Revision  Date:
November 21,

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS 7 2024

Category: ORG-MISC

posted prominently on the regional center’s website within thirty (30) days after being
adopted.

NLACRC also will:

Inform, as part of eligibility determination and vendorization processes, all new
clients/families and new vendors of the regional center’s and the DDS’s Whistleblower
policies.

Review this Policy and provide, at minimum, annual training to all board members
regarding the regional center’s governing board’s approved Whistleblower Policy to
include, but not be limited to the board’s role in implementing the policy.

Submit to DDS by December 15 of each year, a proposed comprehensive board training
plan for the next calendar year with training topics to include, at a minimum a review
of board governance (e.g., board members’ role and responsibilities), conflict of interest
and whistleblower policies, and linguistic and cultural competency.

Utilize other communication mechanisms in use at NLACRC to provide notification to
employees, board members, consumers/families, and vendor community of the
existence of both NALCRC’s and DDS’s Whistleblower complaint process and the right
to make reports of improper activity to the DDS.

93




WHISTLEBLOWER - NLACRC

EMPLOYEES AND BOARD MEMBERS

Category: ORG-MISC

Version No.

7

Revision Date:
November 21,
2024

ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND AGREEMENT TO COMPLY

| acknowledge that | have read and understand this Policy. | understand that compliance with this
Policy is a condition of employment and also a condition of Board Membership at NLACRC.

10

94




Agenda Item Detail Sheet

ACTION X
ACTION/CONSENT
DISCUSSION

INFO ONLY

Date: March 12, 2025.
To: Board of Trustees
From: Betsy Monahan, Human Resources Director and Executive Committee

Subject: Approval of the Reviewed NLACRC Standards of Conduct Policy

BACKGROUND/GENERAL:

The Executive Committee’s purpose is to respond to matters of an urgent nature, which call
for immediate action or commitment prior to the next scheduled meeting of the Board with
all business conducted by the Executive Committee reported at the next Board meeting. The
Executive Committee has the power and authority to oversee the performance evaluation
and negotiate contracts with the Executive Director of the Regional Center.

At its meeting on February 27, 2025, the Executive Committee reviewed the Legal Reviewed
NLACRC Standards of Conduct Policy provided in the meeting packet.

REASON FOR CURRENT ITEM/DICUSSION:

After review and discussion of the NLACRC Standards of Conduct Policy, the Executive
Committee recommends the revisions made to the Standards of Conduct Policy. These
changes are presented in the red lined draft and clean draft of the updated Standards of
Conduct Policy.

FISCAL IMPACT (if any):

None.

RECOMMENDATION:

For the Board to approve the updated NLACRC’s Standards of Conduct Policy as
presented.

95



STANDARDS OF CONDUCT POLICY

Effective Date: Version. #12 Revision Date: N/
February 12,2024 AFebruary 10, 2025

Policy

We strive to provide a professional and congenial work environment. An integral part of this
type of work environment is for employees to treat each other with dignity, respect,
consideration and professionalism during the performance of their work duties and to follow
NLACRC's work rules.

Scope

This policy applies to all NLACRC employees, at all levels when employees are interacting with
employees, contingent workers, independent contractors, vendors, consumers, board members,
advocates, consumers or family members, or other persons with whom a NLACRC employee interacts

in the course of conducting business and when performing NLACRC job and when performing
NLACRC job duties.

Prohibited Conduct

The following NLACRC standards, while by way of example only and not all-inclusive, are-the-
principal-standards in effect at NLACRC. These standards apply equally to all and are for the
protection of all employees, NLACRC's clients, anrd-NLACRC, and any person with whom a
NLACRC employee interacts with during the performance of job duties. More specifically, the
following conduct is prohibited and may result in discipline up to and including immediate
termination.

1. Falsification, unethical or illegal manipulation of, or material omission from, NLACRC
records, including but not limited to employment applications, timekeeping records,
payroll records, financial records, Client records, and/or other business records, or
other materially false or dishonest statements or actions in the course of NLACRC
work or your job duties.

2. Inappropriate or unauthorized use ofNLACRC software, computer networks,
inter/intra/extra nets, email, fax, phone, letterhead, or other NLACRC forms or
documents.

3. Unauthorized entrance or access to offices, records, files or work areas.

96



STANDARDS OF CONDUCT POLICY (contd)

4. Possession of aweapon on NLACRC premises or while performing job duties off
premises.

5. Hitting, pushing, or otherwise striking another person or threatening physical harm or
any other workplace violence (either open or implied) to another person while on
NLACRC premises, while performing job duties off premises, or arising out of
NLACRC business. Prohibited conduct also includes engaging in conduct that
impacts the safety of an employee.

6. Intentionally or negligently damaging Company property or the property of another.

7. Recording the work time of another employee or allowing any other employee to record
your work time, or falsifying any time card, either your own or another emplovyee’s:

6-8.  Failing to promptly report a work-related injury or illness:

#9.  Provoking a fight or fighting during working hours on NLACRC premises or

while performing job duties off premises.

8:10. Failure to observe working schedules, including breaks for rest periods and meal periods.

9:11. Leaving work for any reason during normal working hours without obtaining

permission (except for bona fide meal and rest periods).
10.12. Failure to notify a supervisor when unable to report to work.

13. Working overtime without authorization, off the clock work, or working a schedule other than the

one you have been approved to work for non-exempt personnel.

11.14. .Negligent and/or willful behavior causing significant unsafe condition, damage, or
destruction to property of NLACRC, consumers or family members, fellow employees
or other persons.

15. Fraud, theft, embezzlement, unauthorized taking of property of NLACRC, consumers,
board members, advocates, consumers or family members, or other persons with whom a
NLACRC employee interacts in the course of conducting business.

16. The use of unprofessional, abusive, profane, or threatening language toward employees,
contingent workers, independent contractors, vendors, or consumers.

17. Unauthorized review, disclosure, or distribution of confidential or proprietary information of
NLACRC or its consumers. This can include (but is not limited to) review of consumer
information not officially authorized as assigned to an employee’s caseload, regardless of that
consumer’s familial or other relationship with that employee.

12.18. Sleeping on the job.

13.19. Harassing, discriminatory, or retaliatory behavior or action toward employees,

2199481.1 2

97



STANDARDS OF CONDUCT POLICY (contd)
contingent workers, independent contractors, vendors, consumers, board members,
advocates, consumers or family members, or other persons with whom a NLACRC
employee interacts in the course of conducting business in violation of the
Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, & Retaliation Policy.

14.20. Gross Misconduct, while this is not an all-inclusive list, some examples of gross
misconduct would be bribery, falsifying information, sexual-any type of harassment and
engaging in any illegal activity.

15.21. lllegal or inappropriate use of drugs or alcohol or other prohibited
substances on NLACRC premises or while performing job duties.

22. Any outside employment or other activities or relationships that create any actual or
potential conflicts of interest. A conflict of interest is defined as a conflict between the
private interest and the official responsibilities of an employee of NLACRC. A
conflict of interest includes (but is not limited to):

» Selling, offering to sell, or soliciting to sell products or services of any kind
to NLACRC consumers, and families of consumers or vendors.

e Accepting personal gifts or entertainment, valued more than $15.00, from
vendors, consumers, suppliers, or potential suppliers.

» Accepting cash, cash cards, or gift cards in any denomination or value from
vendors, consumers, suppliers, or potential suppliers.

» Working for suppliers, vendors, or consumers.

» Using proprietary of confidential information of NLACRC for personal gain
or to NLACRC'’s detriment.

» Having a direct or indirect financial interest or relationship with a vendor,
client, or supplier.

» Using NLACRC assets or labor for personal use.

» Acquiring any interest in property or assets of any Kind for the purpose of
selling or leasing to NLACRC.

23. Other violation of NLACRC policy or misconduct that NLACRC determines warrants disciplinary

action.

ItisNLACRC's expectation that all employees adhere to the above values and standards set forth
in the Standards of Conduct Policy and all other NLACRC policies and procedures. Violations are
cause for disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. Further, unless
provided otherwise by a collective bargaining agreement or an employment agreement signed by
the Executive Director, it must be remembered that the employment relationship is based on
mutual consent of the employee and NLACRC. Accordingly, either you or NLACRC can
terminate, or alter, the employment relationship at will at any time, for any or no reason with or
without notice.

2199481.1 3

98



STANDARDS OF CONDUCT POLICY (contd)

| acknowledge that | have received a copy of, will read and will comply with the Standards of
Conduct Policy.

2199481.1 4

99



 Jf I
#l Jle verif;es the Electmn;c s;gnatu<e of th;s document

SIGNATURE

Signer Name:

Elizabeth Monahan

User ID:

EMonahan@N LACRC

Date Electronically
Signed:

May 6, 2024 04:12 PM EDT

File Name:

19 Standards of Conduct Policy 2.7.2024.pdf

Display Name:

19 Standards of Conduct Policy 2.7.2024

100




STANDARDS OF CONDUCT POLICY

Effective Date: Version. #2 Revision Date:
February 12,2024 February 10, 2025

Policy

We strive to provide a professional and congenial work environment. An integral part of this
type of work environment is for employees to treat each other with dignity, respect,
consideration and professionalism during the performance of their work duties and to follow
NLACRC's work rules.

Scope

This policy applies to all NLACRC employees, at all levels when employees are interacting with
employees, contingent workers, independent contractors, vendors, consumers, board members,
advocates, consumers or family members, or other persons with whom a NLACRC employee
interacts in the course of conducting business and when performing NLACRC job and when
performing NLACRC job duties.

Prohibited Conduct

The following NLACRC standards, while by way of example only and not all-inclusive, are in
effect at NLACRC. These standards apply equally to all and are for the protection of all
employees, NLACRC's clients, NLACRC, and any person with whom a NLACRC employee
interacts with during the performance of job duties. More specifically, the following conduct is
prohibited and may result in discipline up to and including immediate termination.

1. Falsification, unethical or illegal manipulation of, or material omission from, NLACRC
records, including but not limited to employment applications, timekeeping records,
payroll records, financial records, Client records, and/or other business records, or
other materially false or dishonest statements or actions in the course of NLACRC
work or your job duties.

2. Inappropriate or unauthorized use of NLACRC software, computer networks,
inter/intra/extra nets, email, fax, phone, letterhead, or other NLACRC forms or
documents.

3. Unauthorized entrance or access to offices, records, files or work areas.

4. Possession of aweapon on NLACRC premises or while performing job duties off
premises.

5. Hitting, pushing, or otherwise striking another person or threatening physical harm or

101



10.
11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.

2199481.1

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT POLICY (contd)

any other workplace violence (either open or implied) to another person while on
NLACRC premises, while performing job duties off premises, or arising out of
NLACRC business. Prohibited conduct also includes engaging in conduct that
impacts the safety of an employee.

Intentionally or negligently damaging Company property or the property of another.

Recording the work time of another employee or allowing any other employee to record
your work time, or falsifying any time card, either your own or another employee’s;

Failing to promptly report a work-related injury or illness.

Provoking a fight or fighting during working hours on NLACRC premises or while
performing job duties off-premises.

Failure to observe working schedules, including breaks for rest periods and meal periods.

Leaving work for any reason during normal working hours without obtaining permission
(except for bona fide meal and rest periods).

Failure to notify a supervisor when unable to report to work.

Working overtime without authorization, off the clock work, or working a schedule other
than the one you have been approved to work for non-exempt personnel.

Negligent and/or willful behavior causing significant unsafe condition, damage, or
destruction to property of NLACRC, consumers or family members, fellow employees
or other persons.

Fraud, theft, embezzlement, unauthorized taking of property of NLACRC, consumers,
board members, advocates, consumers or family members, or other persons with whom a
NLACRC employee interacts in the course of conducting business.

The use of unprofessional, abusive, profane, or threatening language toward employees,
contingent workers, independent contractors, vendors, or consumers.

Unauthorized review, disclosure, or distribution of confidential or proprietary information
of NLACRC or its consumers. This can include (but is not limited to) review of consumer
information not officially authorized as assigned to an employee’s caseload, regardless of
that consumer’s familial or other relationship with that employee.

Sleeping on the job.

Harassing, discriminatory, or retaliatory behavior or action toward employees,
contingent workers, independent contractors, vendors, consumers, board members,
advocates, consumers or family members, or other persons with whom a NLACRC
employee interacts in the course of conducting business in violation of the
Unlawful Harassment, Discrimination, & Retaliation Policy.

Gross Misconduct, while this is not an all-inclusive list, some examples of gross
2

102



STANDARDS OF CONDUCT POLICY (contd)

misconduct would be bribery, falsifying information, any type of harassment and
engaging in any illegal activity.

21. lllegal or inappropriate use of drugs or alcohol or other prohibited substances on
NLACRC premises or while performing job duties.

22. Any outside employment or other activities or relationships that create any actual or
potential conflicts of interest. A conflict of interest is defined as a conflict between the
private interest and the official responsibilities of an employee of NLACRC. A
conflict of interest includes (but is not limited to):

« Selling, offering to sell, or soliciting to sell products or services of any kind
to NLACRC consumers, and families of consumers or vendors.

» Accepting personal gifts or entertainment, valued more than $15.00, from
vendors, consumers, suppliers, or potential suppliers.

» Accepting cash, cash cards, or gift cards in any denomi